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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay, I'm going

          3  to begin by apologizing for being a few moments

          4  late.  At this time I would like to ask anyone that

          5  has a cell phone to please put it on vibrate or shut

          6  it off and that if you feel the need for a private

          7  conversation, if you could have that conversation

          8  outside of the Hearing Room, that would be greatly

          9  appreciated.

         10                 Good morning, my name is Erik Martin

         11  Dilan.  I am the Chair of the City Council's Housing

         12  and Buildings Committee. I would like to thank

         13  everyone today for attending today's hearing on

         14  suspended scaffolds as it relates to workers safety.

         15  The purpose of today's hearing is two-fold:  First,

         16  the Committee is conducting an Oversight Hearing on

         17  the findings of the Department of Buildings'

         18  Suspended Scaffold Worker Safety Task Force; and

         19  then secondly, the Committee is convening to

         20  consider Intro Numbers 524, 523, and 522, three

         21  bills introduced at the request of the Mayor that

         22  reflects some of the Task Force recommendations in

         23  order to improve workers safety on these types of

         24  scaffolds.

         25                 The Suspended Scaffold Worker Safety
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          2  Task Force was convened by Mayor Bloomberg on

          3  November 2, 2006 as a result of numerous suspended

          4  scaffold-related accidents and fatalities on

          5  construction job sites.  The goal of the Task Force

          6  was to reduce the number of suspended scaffold

          7  related accidents and to establish methods of

          8  communication with suspended Task Force workers that

          9  would lead to safer work practices.  The Task Force

         10  members included representatives from City, State

         11  and Federal Government, including myself and Council

         12  Staff, and it was an honor to serve on that Task

         13  Force.  Immigrant Advocacy Organizations, Labor

         14  Unions, Contractors involved in the suspended

         15  scaffold industry and property owner associations.

         16  The Task Force was comprised of two subcommittees,

         17  one to address regulation and enforcement issues and

         18  the other to focus on training and outreach for

         19  other suspended scaffold workers.

         20                 On December 18, 2006, the Task Force

         21  presented to the Mayor's Office 13 recommendations

         22  on how to improve suspended scaffold safety through

         23  outreach, training, and enforcement.

         24                 In today's hearing we will hear

         25  testimony from the Administration, specifically the
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          2  Department of Buildings and other interested parties

          3  on the findings of the Task Force and their

          4  recommendations.  In addition, the Committee will

          5  also hear testimony on the three bills before us and

          6  I'll do a quick summation.

          7                 Intro 522 would amend administrative

          8  code in the City of New York in relation to

          9  inspection requirements for suspended scaffolds.

         10                 Intro 523 would amend the

         11  administrative code and require the Department of

         12  Buildings to be notified prior to the use or

         13  installation of suspended scaffolds hung from C-

         14  hooks and outrigger beams.

         15                 Intro 524 would amend the

         16  administrative code by implementing penalties for

         17  certain violations committed by license riggers or

         18  persons performing the functions and duties of

         19  license riggers or other persons responsible for

         20  keeping inspection records at job sites.

         21                 Again, if anyone here is interested

         22  in testifying on any of these items, please see the

         23  Sergeant at Arms and fill out one of the appearance

         24  cards, and before I call the witnesses today I would

         25  like to introduce Council Member Tony Avella who is
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          2  a Member of this Committee.  I guess with that,

          3  without further ado, we'd love to hear from the

          4  Commissioner at this time.  I see she's been joined

          5  by a former member of this body, the Head of the

          6  Mayor's Office of Immigration, former Council Member

          7  Guillermo Linares.  Good to see you.

          8                 Commissioner.

          9                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Thank you.

         10  Good morning Chairman Dilan and Members of the

         11  Housing and Buildings Committee. I am here before

         12  you today, not only as Commissioner of the

         13  Department of Buildings, but as Chairwoman of the

         14  Suspended Scaffold Worker Safety Task Force.  With

         15  me today are First Deputy Commissioner for

         16  Operations Robert LiMandri and Susan Long, our

         17  Director for Licensing, who will also be responsible

         18  for the implementation of the recommendations from

         19  the Suspended Scaffold Task Force, as well as other

         20  staff members and I wanted to take just a minute to

         21  thank all of you for your hard work that led us to

         22  this point.

         23                 First let me begin by providing you

         24  with some striking New York City statistics:

         25                 In 2006, seven of the seventeen
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          2  construction related deaths in New York City were

          3  from suspended scaffolds.

          4                 Suspended scaffold incidents

          5  increased from five in 2004 to twenty- one in 2006.

          6                 Sixty- one percent of suspended

          7  scaffold incidents in 2006 involved C- hook

          8  scaffolds.

          9                 Fifty percent of incidents involved

         10  workers without the required Certificate of

         11  Training.

         12                 Sixty- seven of the suspended

         13  scaffold incidents in 2006 did not have a licensed

         14  rigger or foreman on site.

         15                 As Chairman Dilan said, on November

         16  2, 2006, Deputy Mayors Carol Robles- Roman and

         17  Daniel Doctoroff announced the creation of the

         18  Scaffold Worker Safety Task Force in response to a

         19  services of suspended scaffold- related injuries and

         20  fatalities in previous months.  The purpose of the

         21  Task Force was to develop concrete steps to minimize

         22  the number of suspended scaffold- related incidents

         23  and to develop effective outreach strategies to

         24  inform suspended scaffold workers of safe work

         25  practices and the dangers of non- compliance.  The
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          2  Task Force was comprised of a range of stakeholders

          3  from the Federal, State and City Governments,

          4  immigrant advocacy groups, workers and contractors

          5  involved in the scaffolding industry.

          6                 There is a difference between

          7  suspended scaffolds and supported scaffolds and the

          8  focus of the Task Force was on suspended scaffolds.

          9  Suspended scaffolds consist of platforms that hang

         10  from support structures on roofs or setbacks of

         11  buildings, while supported scaffolds consist of one

         12  or more platforms supported by rigid poles, posts,

         13  and frames.  While the risks of working on either

         14  type of scaffolding are high, buildings data shows a

         15  significant rise in the number of suspended scaffold

         16  incidents in the months leading up to the creation

         17  of this Task Force.  There are three types of

         18  suspended scaffolds:  Out rigger beams, davits, and

         19  C- hooks.

         20                 The Task Force identified three

         21  principle areas of concern:  1)  Enforcement of

         22  existing regulations and licensing requirements; 2)

         23  Training and outreach to suspended scaffold workers

         24  and contractors; and 3) Training and safety

         25  requirements for suspended scaffold workers.
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          2                 The Task Force developed a set of 13

          3  recommendations which were incorporated into a

          4  report that was submitted to the Mayor on December

          5  18th.

          6                 From the start, the Task Force faced

          7  a huge challenge.  The members had to deal with the

          8  fact that scaffolds are a multi- jurisdictional

          9  issue involving the Federal Occupation Safety and

         10  Health Act, the New York State Department of Labor

         11  and the New York City Department of Buildings.  Each

         12  agency's statistics reflect the different legal

         13  mandates of the agencies. As stated in the Building

         14  Code, the Department of Buildings protects public

         15  safety by ensuring that construction work is

         16  performed properly by qualified individuals.  As

         17  stated in the Occupational Safety and Health Act of

         18  1970, OSHA ensures worker safety and health by

         19  enforcing standards, providing training, outreach,

         20  and education.  The New York State Department of

         21  Labor is responsible for the equipment used in

         22  window washing operations. Buildings collects

         23  fatality data on the construction of buildings,

         24  while OSHA collects worker fatality data on the

         25  construction of all structures.  For example, a
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          2  fatality occurring during the construction of a

          3  bridge or a road would be included in OSHA's

          4  fatality statistics but not in Buildings' fatality

          5  statistics. Likewise, a fatality or injury to a

          6  member of the public would not be reflected in

          7  OSHA's data.

          8                 Recognizing that no single agency

          9  could provide comprehensive statistics on the

         10  matter, the Task Force used available data from

         11  OSHA, Buildings, and BLS, as well as the industry

         12  experience brought by the Task Force members to form

         13  a workable definition of the suspended scaffold

         14  worker population. The Task Force worked under the

         15  following assumptions:

         16                 Workers may be unaware of the

         17  existing safety and training requirements.

         18                 Many workers have a limited English

         19  proficiency.

         20                 Workers may be reticent to demand

         21  safe job conditions for fear of retaliation by an

         22  employer.

         23                 Some workers may be undocumented

         24  immigrants and suspicious of government for fear of

         25  deportation.
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          2                 The majority of construction worker

          3  injuries and fatalities in New York City involve

          4  workers employed by firms employing ten people or

          5  fewer.

          6                 The task force also operated under

          7  the premise that in order for the recommendations to

          8  be effective, Federal, State and local laws need to

          9  hold all responsible parties accountable.

         10  Responsible parties include riggers, foreman,

         11  general contractors, building owners, and the

         12  scaffold workers themselves.  If any of the parties

         13  are not committed to his or her responsibilities the

         14  safety of the suspended scaffold worker is

         15  compromised.

         16                 Today.  The way the current system

         17  works a building owner hires a general contractor or

         18  rigger.  The rigger must ensure that best practices

         19  are used, that harnesses and tie offs are provided

         20  and used, and that equipment is maintained.  The

         21  rigger must also appoint a foreman to oversee the

         22  site in his absence. The worker is responsible for

         23  completing necessary training prior to getting on

         24  the job site.  The rigger or foreman must have proof

         25  that a worker has completed the required training
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          2  and has a valid certificate of a completion.  Then

          3  the rigger or foreman can give the worker a

          4  Certificate of Fitness to work on the job site.

          5                 Early on, the Task Force identified

          6  non- compliance with the above regulations outlined

          7  by the Federal Occupational Safety and Health

          8  Administration and by the New York City Department

          9  of Buildings.  The Task Force also concluded that

         10  currently there is no existing mechanism to collect

         11  and report on comprehensive data on training of

         12  suspended scaffold workers.  This led to the Task

         13  Force's conclusion that training in the industry was

         14  extremely uneven and does not promote accountability

         15  for the completion of training.

         16                 I will now summarize the 13

         17  recommendations presented to the Mayor by the Task

         18  Force.  These recommendations were designed to

         19  achieve our goal of reducing the number of injuries

         20  and fatalities involving suspended scaffold workers

         21  using a two- pronged approach.  These two approaches

         22  are a bottom- up approach to educate suspended

         23  scaffold workers about requirements, information and

         24  assistance available to them, and a top- down

         25  approach to compel riggers, foremen, contractors,
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          2  and building owners to follow the existing rules

          3  designed to support a safe job site for suspended

          4  scaffold workers and the public.

          5                 Recommendation One.  Enhance

          6  Enforcement with Improved Inter- Governmental

          7  Coordination.  In light of the fact that enforcement

          8  of the laws associated with scaffold worker safety

          9  is shared with Federal, State and local agencies, a

         10  method has to be developed to standardize

         11  communication and coordination.  As a result, the

         12  Department of Buildings will coordinate meetings for

         13  the entities that provide oversight to develop a

         14  mutually agreed upon accord that covers

         15  jurisdictional issues, inspection procedures,

         16  incident response protocol and referral processes.

         17  The Task Force also recommended that the three

         18  agencies, OSHA, Buildings, and the New York State

         19  Department of Labor meet quarterly to update each

         20  other on trends and to improve operational

         21  procedures.  Additionally, it was recommended that

         22  Buildings and OSHA develop a standard inspection

         23  protocol to be used by both agencies' inspectors

         24  with standard operating procedures and a detail

         25  checklist of documents to be requested during an
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          2  inspection. This inspection protocol should then be

          3  publicized to the scaffold worker community and to

          4  those who employ them.  We convened the first

          5  meeting of this group in February and are actually

          6  scheduled for a follow- up meeting that our Director

          7  will be attending tomorrow.

          8                 Recommendation Two.  Enhance

          9  Enforcement with Additional Resources.  The Task

         10  Force recommended that Buildings create a dedicated

         11  Scaffold Enforcement Unit comprised of a multi

         12  disciplinary team of inspectors, analysis and

         13  lawyers to proactively conduct suspended scaffold

         14  inspections.  With the announcement of the Mayor's

         15  adoptions of the Task Force's recommendations $6

         16  million will be allocated over the next five years

         17  to the new Scaffold Inspection Unit.  It will be

         18  comprised of 12 inspectors and engineers, a project

         19  manager and two support staff.  The jobs have been

         20  posted and we will begin interviewing and hiring

         21  staff in the next several weeks.  Additionally, the

         22  Task Force recommended that OSHA receive additional

         23  funding for more inspectors and Mayor Bloomberg has

         24  also called for the federal government to provide

         25  more funding to OSHA.
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          2                 Recommendation Three.  Modify Facade

          3  Maintenance Enforcement Deadline.  Local Law 11 of

          4  1998 governs the maintenance of the facades of

          5  approximately 12,000 building facades in the City.

          6  Every five years building owners must file a facade

          7  report for each building detailing the condition of

          8  its facade.  The current filing cycle deadline just

          9  recently passed on February 21, 2007.  As a

         10  practical matter, this law results in the filing of

         11  facade condition reports on thousands of buildings

         12  at the same time.  There is little or no incentive

         13  for owners to file report before the end of the

         14  cycle because once an owner files unsafe the owner

         15  is responsible for remediation which can be cost.

         16  When all the buildings file at once the scaffold

         17  worker is in enormous demand.

         18                 The Task Force recommended that the

         19  Department of Buildings stagger the filing dates for

         20  facade maintenance enforcement so that qualified

         21  riggers, equipment and workers can be more readily

         22  available.  This recommendation will be incorporated

         23  in the proposed New York City Construction Codes

         24  which will be transmitted to the Council this

         25  Spring.
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          2                 Recommendation Four.  Revamp Rigger

          3  License Requirements.  The Task Force concluded that

          4  the rigger's licensing exam, currently in use and

          5  administered by the Department of Citywide

          6  Administrative Services, is out of date and does not

          7  test riggers for familiarity with current best

          8  practices.  Therefore, the Task Force recommended

          9  that the exam be administered by the Department of

         10  Buildings, allowing for an update in the material

         11  the potential licensees are expected to master.

         12                 The Department is in the process of

         13  transferring the administration of a number of

         14  licensing exams from DCAS to Buildings and the

         15  rigger licensing exam is included in those efforts.

         16  We expect to be able to offer a revised rigger exam

         17  on a more frequent basis by early 2008.

         18                 Recommendation Five.  Improve Access

         19  to Information on Licensed Riggers.  The Task Force

         20  recommends that the database of licensed riggers,

         21  which is currently available on Buildings' website,

         22  be made more easily accessible so that building

         23  owners and contractors know they can access this

         24  information anytime.

         25                 The Department is in the process of
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          2  updating our website to complete the Task Force's

          3  recommendation and expect the improved database to

          4  be up and running on our website by early May.

          5                 Recommendation Six.  Improve Training

          6  Programs for Riggers, Foreman and Workers by

          7  Standardizing and Enhancing Training Requirements.

          8  The Task Force recommends that the Department of

          9  Buildings and OSHA should identify best training

         10  practices from existing Buildings Department

         11  approved program as well as State Department of

         12  Labor approved apprentice program.  To implement

         13  this recommendation a Training Requirements Work

         14  Group will inventory all endorsed training programs

         15  for curricula, class schedule, duration, reading

         16  levels, language, pass/fail rates and testing/exit

         17  criteria.  The goal of this recommendation is to

         18  identify gaps where current training content does

         19  not meet OSHA and NYC Buildings requirements.

         20                 Recommendation Seven.  Improve

         21  Accountability for Completion of Training.  The Task

         22  Force determined that a verification of worker

         23  completion of safety training needs to be

         24  established.  The Task Force also recommended the

         25  development of a uniform certificate for those who
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          2  complete training, the requirement of a photo

          3  identification on this certificate and record

          4  keeping requirements for the training programs to

          5  not only better track those trained but to be able

          6  to track useful information such as the language the

          7  employee was trained in and the pass/fail rate of

          8  the attendees.  The Department has already conducted

          9  a first meeting with the private training providers

         10  and is in the process of scheduling a meeting with

         11  organized labor and CUNY to discuss their training

         12  methodology and process.

         13                 Recommendation Eight.  Increase

         14  Training Access, Participation and Completion.  In

         15  order to facilitate access and participation with

         16  respect to training programs, the Task Force

         17  recommended that the Mayor's Office of Immigrant

         18  Affairs partner with immigrant advocacy groups and

         19  day laborer organizations to determine the list of

         20  languages in which training should be provided.

         21  Identified gaps will be reported back to training

         22  providers, contractors and advocacy groups.

         23                 To further increase access to

         24  training, the Task Force recommended that OSHA,

         25  Buildings and the various training providers review
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          2  legal requirements and provide alternative methods

          3  of registration without requiring social security

          4  numbers.  Because cost may be a contributing factor

          5  towards making training inaccessible, the Task Force

          6  recommended that Immigrant Affairs, immigrant and

          7  worker organizations as well as Buildings research

          8  and create a database of grants and alternative

          9  resources available to support training efforts.

         10  This database should be available to all training

         11  providers and advocacy groups.

         12                 Recommendation Nine.  Distribute

         13  Basic Safety Rules and Contact Information to the

         14  Widest Audience as Quickly as Possible.  The Task

         15  Force recommended the development and distribution

         16  of two Quick Guide Brochures.  The first brochure,

         17  solely focusing on educating the worker, would

         18  include information about Buildings and OSHA rules,

         19  311, training providers, immigrant advocacy group

         20  contact information and pictographic safety tips.

         21  The second brochure would have a combined target of

         22  the worker and the responsible party.  This brochure

         23  would contain information on responsibilities,

         24  outlining each party's duties and responsibilities

         25  and setting forth the penalties for non compliance
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          2  with safety regulations by each party, that is the

          3  contractor, rigger, foreman and worker.  Both

          4  brochures would be available in English, Spanish,

          5  Polish, Russian, Chinese and Urdu. The brochures

          6  would be distributed by utilizing all available

          7  conduits, Mayor's Office, City agencies, worker and

          8  immigrant organizations, labor, industry groups and

          9  training providers.

         10                 Recommendation Ten.  The Task Force

         11  recognized the effectiveness of 311 as a tool to

         12  alert Buildings of possible violations, and

         13  therefore recommends that the Department revise the

         14  language on the signs currently mandated on sites so

         15  that the signs promote worker and public reporting

         16  of unsafe conditions and mandate also contractors to

         17  update their signs with the revised language.

         18  Additionally, 311 call- takers should be trained to

         19  understand when a call received about an unsafe

         20  scaffold may be reporting an imminent danger and

         21  when that call should be forwarded to 911.

         22                 The remaining three recommendations

         23  have resulted in the three pieces of legislation

         24  before you today.

         25                 Recommendation Eleven.  Enhance
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          2  Enforcement with Increased Penalties for Non-

          3  Compliance.  The Task Force recommended that a

          4  series of penalties be adopted to incorporate

          5  increasing fines and penalties for those who

          6  repeatedly allow workers to engage in unsafe

          7  practices.  In addition, the Task Force urged the

          8  Department of Buildings to use stop work orders more

          9  extensively and immediately suspend, and if

         10  warranted, revoke rigger licenses when a rigger

         11  repeatedly engages in unsafe practices.  The goal of

         12  license suspension should be to prevent a contractor

         13  or rigger who engages in unsafe practices from

         14  continuing to do work with the City.  Additionally,

         15  Buildings should investigate the use of arrests on

         16  grounds of reckless endangerment.

         17                 As a result, Intro 524 has been

         18  introduced.  This bill will set forth an increased

         19  penalty schedule for non compliance of the

         20  regulations governing licensed riggers and others

         21  who supervise suspended scaffolds.  The current

         22  administrative code provides a range of penalties

         23  from zero to $2,500 for the first offense and from

         24  zero to 10,000 for a second or subsequent offense.

         25  The proposed legislation sets a minimum of $1,500
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          2  for no certificate of fitness or $1,250 for no

          3  licensed rigger on site and no insurance or workers

          4  comp on a first offense and $2,500 for a second or

          5  subsequent offense with a penalty of $15,000 for a

          6  default.

          7                 The Task Force firmly believes, as I

          8  do, that improving oversight and outreach can only

          9  go so far and that increased penalties as a form of

         10  punishment and as a deterrent are necessary.

         11                 Recommendation Twelve.  Enhance

         12  Enforcement by Requiring Daily Inspection Logs.  The

         13  key to safe scaffolding practice is the proper use

         14  of equipment used to suspend scaffolding equipment

         15  and rigs over the side of a building.  Therefore,

         16  regulation and maintenance of the mechanism used to

         17  suspend the rig is importance.  The Task Force

         18  recommended that a maintenance log for each

         19  suspended scaffold rig be kept at all times and that

         20  the rigger or foreman conduct daily on- site

         21  inspections and record inspection results.

         22                 Additionally, the Task Force realized

         23  that under the current regulatory scheme riggers

         24  designate a foreman for a job site in the rigger's

         25  absence by utilizing a tear- off sheet. However, the
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          2  tear- off sheet does not include a field for the

          3  name of the person responsible for the work in the

          4  rigger's absence. Therefore, the Task Force

          5  recommended that the rigger include the name of the

          6  foreman required to be at the site.

          7                 Intro 522 would mandate that a rigger

          8  or rigger's foreman, a licenses sign hanger or the

          9  sign hanger's foreman, or a construction

         10  superintendent inspect all suspended scaffolds daily

         11  and keep a record of the inspection at that job site

         12  that is available to Department personnel.  Current

         13  law allows these duties to be performed by the user

         14  of the suspended scaffold.  This local law would

         15  implement the Task Force's recommendation that

         16  trained personnel perform these functions so as to

         17  minimize the risks to the public.

         18                 Recommendation Thirteen.  Enhance

         19  Enforcement by Requiring Buildings Department

         20  Notification of C- hook Use.  As previously

         21  mentioned, there are three major types of mechanisms

         22  to support suspended scaffolds from buildings.  The

         23  most common is the C- hook which currently may be

         24  hung without notifying the Department of Buildings

         25  or obtaining a permit.  Therefore, Buildings is not
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          2  aware of where or when C- hooks are being used.

          3                 In reviewing the incident data it was

          4  evident that incidents on scaffolds using C- hooks

          5  are the most common type of incident.  Compounded

          6  with the fact that there is no permit or

          7  notification mechanism to Buildings, the Task Force

          8  strongly recommended that Buildings be notified

          9  prior to C- hook use.  Once the Department knows

         10  where and when C- hooks are used, we can conduct

         11  random inspections and focused sweeps.  Our new

         12  Scaffold Enforcement Unit will conduct these sweeps.

         13                 Intro 523 would require any person

         14  using or installing a suspended scaffold hung form a

         15  C- hook or outrigger beam to notify the Department

         16  of Buildings at least 24 but no more than 48 hours

         17  prior to the commencement of the use or

         18  installation. The notification would be accompanied

         19  by a fee in the amount of $35.

         20                 The local law would also impose a

         21  penalty of $500 for the first violation and $1,250

         22  for a second violation of the notification

         23  provisions.  It would also authorize the

         24  Commissioner of Buildings to issue a stop work order

         25  that will be effect for a minimum of two days if
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          2  there is a failure to notify the Department as

          3  required and if a) the rigger is unlicensed, or b)

          4  the workers lack certificates of fitness, or c) the

          5  rigger has not filed proper insurance or bonding

          6  documents.

          7                 These new requirements and penalties

          8  that would be imposed by this local law would

          9  further protect the public by ensuring proper

         10  installation techniques at construction sites.

         11                 In closing, I want to thank you and

         12  the members of the Task Force for sharing my concern

         13  on this issue.  Every construction related death is

         14  a tragedy, not just for the worker, but for the

         15  worker's family, friends and community.

         16  Implementation of the Task Force proposals and

         17  adoption of the proposed legislation will help us in

         18  minimizing these tragedies.  If workers are tied

         19  off, if equipment is maintained, if awareness is

         20  heightened as to the importance of these rules we

         21  can make great gains.  While it is perhaps

         22  unrealistic to hope that we can reduce scaffold

         23  related deaths to zero, that is my goal.  Every

         24  death is one death too many.  We must do better, we

         25  can do better, let us work together to do so.  Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

          4  Before I go into questioning I don't see any

          5  testimony but I want to give, oh I do see testimony,

          6  if Mr. Linares wants to testify at this time he can

          7  do so.

          8                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  Good morning

          9  Chairman Dilan and Members of the Committee and City

         10  Council.  Thank you for the opportunity to discuss

         11  the work we're all doing to increase the safety of

         12  workers on suspended scaffolds.  I want to

         13  acknowledge your leadership Mr. Chairman, and that

         14  of the Council working closely with us to address

         15  this critical issue.

         16                 Let me start by introducing the

         17  function of my office.  The Mayor's Office of

         18  Immigrant Affairs works to link immigrant

         19  communities to City agencies.  We work closely with

         20  religious, civic and business organizations in these

         21  communities to create bridges to navigate New York

         22  city government agencies and services.

         23                 Those channels are open to all

         24  immigrants in the City, who work, who also happen to

         25  make up the lion's share of the City's workforce.
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          2  Those industrious workers quite literally keep our

          3  City going.  They account for 43 percent of our

          4  labor force.

          5                 These foreign- born workers are the

          6  backbone for health industries, social services, the

          7  construction industry and of course so many others.

          8  Truly you don't have to be a historian to know that

          9  the wave of immigrants in the 1970's, while other

         10  residents were fleeing the City, contributed to the

         11  economy in a way that helped save the City.

         12                 Those contributions are even more

         13  significant today. Last month Mayor Bloomberg cited

         14  a record number of construction projects going on

         15  throughout the five boroughs.  We know that a large

         16  part of that work couldn't be possible without the

         17  hard work of immigrants in the construction

         18  industry.

         19                 Too many of these laborers, however,

         20  people who leave other native countries to work

         21  towards the American Dream have fallen victims of

         22  accidents.  By and large, these accidents have been

         23  caused by poor training, faulty or lack of safety

         24  equipment and language barriers between workers and

         25  their supervisors.
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          2                 Under the leadership of the Mayor and

          3  Deputy Mayors Carol Robles- Roman and Dan Doctoroff,

          4  our goal became clear.  We needed to make proactive

          5  measure to protect workers and to save lives.

          6                 The Scaffold Worker Safety Task Force

          7  was convened in November and just a few weeks ago it

          8  put forward it's recommendations that you just

          9  heard.  They are a strategic approach that

         10  encompasses three key elements to safeguard workers

         11  and enforcement, enhanced training and a

         12  comprehensive outreach plan.

         13                 Since the Task Force was convened, my

         14  office has been proactive in getting the word out to

         15  contractors and workers on scaffolding.  And here I

         16  should say that that proactivity has involved both

         17  us as Commissioners going out there and distributing

         18  fliers and while the Task Force was doing it's work.

         19    And we've done so in the five non- English

         20  language most spoken in the construction industry.

         21  These are Spanish, Urdu, Chinese, Polish and Russian

         22  as testified by the Commissioner.

         23                 That outreach has involved the

         24  distribution of workers- safety fliers to relevant

         25  advocacy groups and day- laborer organizations,
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          2  including the Latin American Worker's Project.  We

          3  also made sure that literature was in plain English

          4  and easy to understand.

          5                 I personally, as well as the Mayor,

          6  recorded a radio PSA on the City's largest Spanish

          7  language news talk radio station urging workers to

          8  follow safety guidelines, report any wrongdoing and

          9  call 311.

         10                 This multilingual approach goes to

         11  the heart of the problem that a large portion of

         12  these workers don't speak the language well enough

         13  to communicate with their supervisors. Citywide we

         14  know that 25 percent of New Yorkers are not

         15  proficient in English and though we don't have the

         16  exact numbers we can presume that language barriers

         17  in the construction industry are far more

         18  pronounced.

         19                 To that end, my office will continue

         20  to assist the Department of Buildings as it works to

         21  develop and translate safety brochures.  We will

         22  also collaborate with ethnic media and faith and

         23  community- based organization to serve immigrants to

         24  disseminate educational materials.

         25                 Through training and outreach to the
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          2  community we will work hard to make construction

          3  sites safer for workers.  This work is ongoing and

          4  we will continue to work toward protecting all

          5  workers, including those who have limited English

          6  proficiency.

          7                 I would be happy to take any

          8  questions that you may have, along with Commissioner

          9  Lancaster.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Just a little

         12  housekeeping.  I have to announce some of the

         13  Members that have joined since we've begun, to the

         14  far right, but not literally, Council Member Dennis

         15  Gallagher, Council Member Leroy Comrie, Council

         16  Member Avella was introduced at the start.  We've

         17  also been joined by Council Member Maria Baez, and I

         18  just want to note for the record that at this time

         19  Council Member Joel Rivera is presiding over the

         20  Health Committee which he Chairs.

         21                 I do want to thank all those that

         22  were involved in the Scaffolding Task Force and

         23  coming up with these recommendations today.  I know

         24  it took long hours of your hard work, but I just

         25  want to get into a few questions and then I'll open
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          2  it up to my colleagues for questions and I do want

          3  to state that this is the initial hearing on the

          4  Legislative items before us today, as well as

          5  initial Oversight Hearing on the work of the

          6  Scaffolding Task Force.  I would imagine that in the

          7  near future we will hear this issue one more time

          8  and proceed to a vote sometime in the near future.

          9  But I want to open, Commissioner, with the

         10  Scaffolding Task Force Enforcement Unit, could you

         11  please explain the make- up and will this Unit be

         12  based at DOB or will it be the Mayor's Office of

         13  Special Enforcement?

         14                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  The Scaffold

         15  Enforcement Unit is based in the Department of

         16  Buildings.  It consists of 15 people, five teams of

         17  two each inspectors, a project manager and two

         18  support staff.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay, how do you

         20  propose to pay for this Unit?  Would it be through

         21  the implementation of the C hook fees, or will this

         22  be some sort of new initiative in the budget that

         23  would be baselined?

         24                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  The money

         25  for the Scaffold Enforcement Team was in the Jan
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          2  Plan budget.  It will be offset by the C- hook

          3  notification fees.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay, now just a

          5  little technical information if you will.  Can you

          6  please explain what C hook and outrigger beams are?

          7  How they work?

          8                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Sure --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Safe or unsafe?

         10   --

         11                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  -- I have

         12  pictures actually.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  -- And how can we

         14  make safe?  If you have pictures we'd be glad to --

         15                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  -- We

         16  brought --                         CHAIRPERSON

         17  DILAN:  -- Allow you to illustrate.

         18                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  -- Pictures.

         19

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  We do have some

         21  here at the desk just in case.

         22                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Okay, so

         23  let's go through the three types of suspended

         24  scaffold.  First of all, davit, on the upper picture

         25  on the front page is a rig used for window washing
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          2  so that rig goes over to the side of the building

          3  and then the scaffold is hung off the side of the

          4  building and the people wash the windows with that.

          5  In the second picture you can see the beam

          6  cantilevered over the side of the building at the

          7  left and tied to the structure where it says tie-

          8  back on the right there, tie- back for outrigger.

          9  So the outrigger beam is actually tied to the

         10  structure of the building and then the scaffold, the

         11  plank, basket, is suspended from the outrigger beam.

         12    In the next picture on the second page you'll see

         13  a C- hook which is one end, there's also a C hook on

         14  the other end and then a basket or plank is

         15  suspended between the two C- hooks and run down the

         16  side of the building.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay, now you

         18  stated that the cost will be offset and there's

         19  going to be a budget ask for the Scaffolding Task

         20  Unit and it would be offset by the implementation of

         21  a fee for C- hooks.  How much revenue do you expect

         22  to bring in with the new fees for C- hooks,

         23  estimate, I know this is all rough.

         24                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Because C-

         25  hooks are not now regulated we don't have exact
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          2  numbers for C- hook use, however, given the fact

          3  that when windows are watched or when masonry work

          4  is done or when the other repairs say to the

          5  lighting on the facade of a building is done, C-

          6  hooks are commonly used by maintenance personnel and

          7  construction personnel alike.  We've made an

          8  estimate of the use of C- hooks and therefore, the

          9  fees that would be generated from a $35 notification

         10  every time you use a C- hook, which could many times

         11  a year for some buildings that would be

         12  approximately six million dollars a year and it is

         13  to that amount that the Scaffolding Enforcement Team

         14  was funded.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  It sounds then

         16  like you expect this revenue stream to fully fund --

         17                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  -- The Unit?

         19                 Okay, now how common are --

         20                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  I just

         21  wanted to make clear it's six million over five

         22  years.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Over five years.

         24  How common are the use of C- hooks?  They sound like

         25  they are pretty commonly used but we're only looking
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          2  to implement fees of C- hooks for the use of

          3  suspended scaffolding alone, or are we looking for

          4  other uses as well?

          5                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  C- hooks are

          6  the support mechanism for the suspended scaffold so

          7  you don't really use C hooks for anything but

          8  suspending scaffolding and you're right that it's

          9  very common usage.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay, great.  I

         11  wanted to talk about Intro's 522, 523, and 524 for a

         12  brief second and I want to talk about the penalty

         13  portions.

         14                 Can the penalties articulated in the

         15  legislation be assessed against a building owner in

         16  addition to the person who failed to act in

         17  accordance with the positions of each respective

         18  bill?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         20  My name is Bob LiMandri, I'm First Deputy

         21  Commissioner of Operations.  When we went forward

         22  and designed the penalty schedule with the Task

         23  Force, the Task Force believed that the person in

         24  charge of the project, the licensed rigger would be

         25  the one responsible for the workers on the scaffold,
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          2  so we intend to use the no certificate of fitness,

          3  the no rigger license, no insurance or the record of

          4  an inspection to be against the rigger.  And the

          5  reason we do that is that's the best way that the

          6  Department can effect enforcement because they have

          7  a license and they hold that license with the

          8  Department, not only does that put them on the books

          9  of an infraction, but the penalty structure goes

         10  even so far as to say in three times within a six

         11  month period, not only are we going to stop the work

         12  and affect the rigger every time on that one

         13  particular project but three times in six months,

         14  the Commissioner has the right to immediately

         15  suspend their ability to work in the City with an

         16  expedited oath hearing and we could go in to revoke

         17  their license.           CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  So it's

         18  just the rigger that would be --

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         20  That's what we're looking for, yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  -- Not the

         22  building owner.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         24  That's correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Now, what if
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          2  someone uses a suspended scaffold for more than a

          3  year at the same location, would there be more than

          4  a one time fee or would they be just charged once?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

          6  That's right. What we plan to do is work with

          7  Building Owners Industry and come up with a scheme

          8  so that we understand that the primary goal here is

          9  that when they call between 24 and 48 hours we want

         10  to be able to be able to see that scaffold being

         11  used.  In essence we don't want them to call and say

         12  we're going to use the scaffold this year and hang

         13  up the phone for $35 and then any time throughout

         14  that year.  So essentially we want to be able to tie

         15  the actual work in relatively approximate time

         16  between around one to two months and that would

         17  allow us to be able to see that being used at that

         18  time.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  At this time I'm

         20  going to go to Council Member Jackson who has just

         21  joined us, for a question.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I'm sorry, I

         23  didn't --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  All right so I'll

         25  go to -- it always happens with me and Leroy.  And
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          2  it's always Leroy.  All right so I'll go to Council

          3  Member Comrie who was first with question then

          4  followed by Council Member Jackson.  It's always

          5  good to stay out of trouble with leadership.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you.

          7  Good morning Commissioner, good morning

          8  Commissioner, Commissioner's actually. Question, you

          9  said earlier that you don't have a count on how many

         10  C- hooks or outrigger beams are, or davit structures

         11  are in place?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         13  Today we'll take all three of them piece by piece.

         14  The easiest one to take is the davit structure, that

         15  is built with the building and is actually approved

         16  through New York State.  We could get you that

         17  number of how many davit structures there are in the

         18  City from the State Department of Labor.  The second

         19  piece is outrigger beams. Each one of those is today

         20  they notify us because they bring in a document that

         21  identifies for us the weight structure.  There is

         22  some engineering that is involved with an outrigger

         23  beam. Approximately each year there is 1,000, but we

         24  could get you specifics on exactly how many each

         25  year.  And then the third piece is the C- hooks.
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          2  The C- hooks are, as the Commissioner indicated, a

          3  mechanism that is not regulated by the City today.

          4  It can be used for a three hour job, or three month,

          5  or three year job depending on the use.  And that is

          6  something that we don't have any numbers on but

          7  we've made some estimates and we believe that those

          8  estimates are a good estimate of how many times

          9  people will need to call us.  And that estimate was

         10  developed in a couple ways. Primarily we looked at

         11  the 12,000 buildings that are required to file with

         12  us every five years, their Local Law 11 Report, and

         13  we've estimated based on that number.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And you said

         15  there's no regulation for the C- hook?  There's no

         16   --

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         18  Currently there's no regulation for the C-hook to

         19  notify the Department that they're in use.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Is it an OSHA

         21  regulation or any type of regulation on C-hooks at

         22  all?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         24  OSHA does regulate the workers and how they are to

         25  be tied off and the safety procedures overall in
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          2  construction and on scaffolds, including suspended

          3  scaffolds.  So yes, there is requirements by the

          4  federal government that indicate of how they're

          5  used.

          6                 Now, this regulation, I should

          7  indicate that there's no requirement for them to

          8  tell us when they're using it.  Certainly there is a

          9  requirement that a licensed rigger is in charge,

         10  that there are safety guidelines in the code that

         11  they should be following but to say that there was

         12  no regulation, I apologize, I meant to say that

         13  there was no regulation on when it's being used.

         14  Like most times when you do work in the City of New

         15  York you notify the Department of Buildings, you get

         16  a permit, we make sure that there's certain

         17  insurance requirements and we allow you to go to

         18  work.  In this case it's not.

         19                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Council

         20  Member, with your approval I'll make a comment on

         21  that too, which is that in accessing the legislation

         22  of the Buildings Department we have found holes in

         23  it as Bob said and those holes have been there for

         24  years and years and years and I feel very

         25  appreciative of this Council that we're sitting here

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  today talking about a hole and I trust or hope that

          3  you'll help us close it.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Well we want

          5  to do that most definitely.

          6                 I'm just curious, the tie-back for

          7  the C-hooks, what is that?  Is that rope?  I can't

          8  really discern that from this picture, it's a little

          9  obtuse.  Is that a rope hook, awner hook (phonetic),

         10  or a metal hook or is that just all rope?

         11                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  The one

         12  pictured on the second page at the top is a nylon

         13  rope and we're saying that the tie- back can be made

         14  with any methodology with sufficient tensile

         15  strength.  The strength is usually listed on the

         16  mechanism such as a steel rope or stranded steel or

         17  nylon.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And these C-

         19  hook scaffolds, they're the ones that go up and down

         20  manually or do they go up and down --

         21                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  They can go

         22  up and down either with a pulley, manually operated

         23  or by mechanism, motor.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  All right.

         25  And I know a couple other Members will go into this

                                                            43

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  in more detail but what kind of feedback have you

          3  gotten on the effectiveness of training for

          4  immigrant workers on these particular buildings?

          5                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Well it's a

          6  complex issue and I think it will be addressed by

          7  testimony from some members of the audience today as

          8  well as by both of our Departments.  But Guillermo

          9  do you want to take that?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Before he does,

         11  I'm just going to briefly run up to the Gov Op's

         12  Committee so I don't get marked absent and then I

         13  will come back and rejoin this hearing.  Council

         14  Member Jackson will take over for me briefly in my

         15  absence.

         16                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  Before I

         17  respond, I neglected initially to introduce my

         18  Deputy Commissioner Azi Khalilli who has joined us

         19  this morning.

         20                 Clearly one of the critical pieces

         21  with us addressing the efforts to educate beyond

         22  reaching out to workers to educate them about their

         23  requirements for them to use the proper and safe

         24  equipment.  The proper equipment before they get on

         25  a scaffold but also to make them aware of the
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          2  training that they are to get from those who hire

          3  them.  You have to take into account that a high

          4  percentage of these workers are not proficient in

          5  English.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right.

          7                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  And so this is

          8  a critical piece and I should also say that it's not

          9  just limited to the workers themselves.  We have

         10  many contractors who may be limited in English, who

         11  may speak a language other than English and

         12  different than that of the workers.  So you may have

         13  someone of ethnic background, an immigrant that

         14  hires workers and so we need to assess that in

         15  approach so that first the training that takes place

         16  considers the language that the workers will speak

         17  and the training needs to be sensitive to those

         18  languages and we also need to make sure by

         19  approaching the collaboration between OSHA and State

         20  and City agencies that both the training, as well as

         21  the oversight takes very much in mind that the

         22  diverse languages that both workers and contractors

         23  have.  I believe that one of the key things that

         24  we're looking to do in doing this is by working

         25  closely with non- profit institutions and also other
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          2  stakeholders in the industry itself that recognize

          3  the importance of being able to communicate

          4  effectively in plain language and also using

          5  information as a tool for workers to communicate

          6  with us if necessary through 311, and not to be

          7  fearful because we want their safety and we also

          8  want their protection as well.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  So that was a

         10  long way of saying that nothing is in place yet and

         11  that we still have to make sure that there is an

         12  opportunity.  I represent a District where

         13  unfortunately I have a lot of day- laborers that are

         14  congregating along Jamaica Avenue between Francis

         15  Louis Boulevard all the way down to about one

         16  hundred and, they've actually evolved, they've

         17  extended their range now.  And I just can't believe

         18  that a day laborer is going to, 1) submit to

         19  training, 2) listen to training. They're going to

         20  take whatever job they can get when they're trying

         21  to chase cars and chase vans and chase whatever

         22  vehicles, jump in there.  I'm very dubious about

         23  this going from conversation into reality.  I'm also

         24  very concerned because we do have so much work

         25  that's going on in the City that they're being

                                                            46

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  utilized and I think that we really need to have a

          3  lot more discussion about what effectively can deal

          4  with this problem.  From the accidents that have

          5  happened, most of the accidents have happened with

          6  an undocumented workforce.  In fact the accident

          7  that happened in Queens a couple of months ago, they

          8  still haven't found a couple of the people because

          9  everybody left the scene.  So I think that we have

         10  some real issues that we need to work on regarding

         11  the ability of ensuring that there's some outreach

         12  done and I think they're doing it, and I want to

         13  commend the Commissioner for putting this team

         14  together and I hope that we can actually come up

         15  with most of these recommendations implemented but I

         16  still think it's putting a lot more responsibility

         17  on the Buildings Department frankly than it is

         18  putting on the individuals that are on the site and

         19  I think that we need to take a hard look at that.

         20                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  If I may

         21  comment on what you just said.  My office had been

         22  engaged for quite some time prior to the existence

         23  of this Task Force but also during the time that

         24  this Task Force has been working closely and

         25  proactively with day laborers and with organizations
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          2  that work closely with them.  In fact two of those

          3  organizations were members of the Task Force and

          4  speaking and you will hear testimony from Project

          5  Hospitality, with which I have been working since my

          6  tenure as Commissioner and also with a Latin

          7  American workers project that works in Brooklyn as

          8  well as in Queens, Project Hospitality is in Staten

          9  Island.  We have been working with them to make sure

         10  that workers safety and also how to address the

         11  challenges that they have.  Many of those workers

         12  being undocumented, to make them aware that in our

         13  City we have a privacy policy to executive order,

         14  they have access to any service or also any

         15  protection that is afforded to all New Yorkers and

         16  we have been working proactively with a number of

         17  institutions to address that.  And in addition, I

         18  Chair a Commission on day laborers that we're

         19  finalizing that report and I'd like to share with

         20  you the many of the recommendations that have come

         21  out from the passports. --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Have you been

         23  to my location in Queens that I talked about?  --

         24                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  I beg your

         25  pardon?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Along Jamaica

          3  Avenue, is there a group that you have that can

          4  identify to work with because I gave a, well I'm not

          5  going to say how much money, it was over, it was a

          6  lot of money to a group in Queens and they've done

          7  absolutely nothing to deal with my day- laborer

          8  problems, so I'm more than willing to sit down and

          9  work with you and try and deal with that because

         10  it's now affecting, and I'm off topic a minute but

         11  since the Chairs not here I can -- I got three

         12  business or three new properties that are trying to

         13  start and attract business and I've got national

         14  chains that come on Jamaica Avenue now and don't

         15  want to do business because the day- laborers are

         16  blocking the whole area, and I've got a real

         17  problem.  --

         18                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  We'd be glad

         19  to follow- up with you on that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  -- So, as a

         21  side thing I'll give you a call later and set up a

         22  meeting because you talked about two groups but I

         23  don't think either one of them are in Queens.

         24                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  They are the

         25  Latin American Workers Project has been working
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          2  primarily on Roosevelt Avenue in Queens where

          3  there's large numbers of day- laborers that

          4  congregate there and they've been primarily working

          5  there but let me follow- up with you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  We need some

          7  help.

          8                 Back on the topic, since I'll

          9  probably only have one other question.  I just want

         10  to congratulate the Commissioner on trying to, and

         11  putting this entire report together.  Clearly there

         12  are a lot of things that we need to work on and the

         13  ability to, I just think it puts too much pressure

         14  on the Department frankly on a lot of these issues

         15  and I admire you for wanting to take on all these

         16  additional tasks.  I think that if we could put more

         17  pressure on the foremen, or the people on a

         18  particular job to file proper reports, it would be a

         19  lot easier on the Department.  But I'm willing to

         20  work with whatever needs to happen to make sure that

         21  we have safety since that's the overall concern.

         22                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Thank you,

         23  appreciate your concern and you're right that this

         24  is a big task order here.  I think that our efforts

         25  to have teeth in our enforcement are helped by this
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          2  because one of the things that makes it hard is when

          3  people think our enforcement doesn't mean anything,

          4  right?  I think this will go a long way.  And also,

          5  you're absolutely correct that if the foreman could

          6  be made more responsible that would be a very good

          7  thing and I think our construction superintendent

          8  rule that is airing in the CAPA process right now

          9  will help that situation as well as this situation.

         10                 Thank you for your support.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you.

         12  Thank you Mr. Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you Council

         14  Member Comrie, we've been joined by Council Member

         15  Tom White.  I'm not sure if Council Member Jackson

         16  did that, but I'll do it just in case. Council

         17  Member Gallagher for question.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Thank you.

         19    Thank you Commissioners for your testimony.  You

         20  know I think it's important that we review the

         21  important issues, safety of the workers, suspended

         22  scaffolds, it's a critical issue and I appreciate

         23  the Task Force recommendations.  I certainly agree

         24  that we should be increasing inspections at

         25  locations, I think that's a critical issue.  I think
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          2  that we should be looking at increasing some

          3  summonses to ensure compliance.  I think that that's

          4  critical.  I think we should give the Buildings

          5  Department additional resources and revamp the

          6  rigger licenses.  I just want to talk to you a

          7  little bit about cost.  I know  Commissioner

          8  Lancaster you had said in your testimony that cost

          9  may be a contributing factor towards making training

         10  inaccessible.  I was looking for a number.  I was

         11  wondering between the two agencies, Commissioner

         12  Linares and Commissioner Lancaster, how much money

         13  do you anticipate will be spent on training programs

         14  in multiple languages?  How much do you estimate

         15  that the this cost will be to the City taxpayers?

         16                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Nothing.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Nothing,

         18  and can you explain --

         19                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Let me

         20  expand on that, yes. The training is paid for by the

         21  workers or the construction company's themselves.

         22  So no net City money will be used for that and right

         23  now by calling 311 a worker, be it an immigrant or

         24  not, can find out where the training courses are

         25  offered, how much they cost, and in what language.
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          2  We're already in Spanish and English.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Spanish

          4  and English.  In the testimony it said they were

          5  going to be expanding it to Urdu, Russian, Chinese,

          6  Polish?

          7                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  And these

          9  agencies are not funded by any other grants that are

         10  given by government?

         11                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Not

         12  currently, no.  I mean I think that as a result of

         13  the Suspended Scaffold Worker Task Force outcomes,

         14  there will be a cottage industry growing up of

         15  people who offer training in different languages and

         16  who offers cheaper training and who offers training

         17  in the boroughs --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  So the

         19  expense would go to the employer?

         20                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  It is not

         21  determinate who pays for it.  Usually the scaffold

         22  worker themselves pays for their certificate of

         23  fitness.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  And the

         25  printing of all the brochures and the advertisements
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          2  that was highlighted in Commissioner Linares'

          3  testimony?

          4                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  That we

          5  receive funding from the Office of Management and

          6  Budget.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  And do you

          8  have a dollar amount in which it will be spent or

          9  anticipate it be spent between these --

         10                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yes.  Let me

         11  make sure I get this right.  Hang on just a sec.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Sure.

         13                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  It's $30,500

         14  a year.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Okay,

         16  that's much more reasonable and the reason why I

         17  asked this is I've been sitting in on so many of the

         18  different agencies hearings and there's a lot of

         19  talk about the printing of brochures in multiple

         20  languages,  the offering of classes in multiple

         21  languages, the training in multiple languages, and

         22  when I ask Commissioners the price, some say

         23  hundreds of thousands, some say millions, and when

         24  we're looking at the budget negotiation process, and

         25  I consider myself somebody who's supportive of the
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          2  Buildings Department during the process when we're

          3  trying to get additional money to get inspectors out

          4  there --

          5                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  We

          6  appreciate it.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  -- That we

          8  spend so much time and so much money on translating

          9  and writing brochures in multiple languages that we

         10  don't spend enough money on getting inspectors out

         11  to the sites.  We have a tremendous problem with the

         12  self- certified properties throughout the City.  We

         13  have a problem with overdevelopment.  We have a

         14  problem where we don't have enough building

         15  inspectors to go out and get high risk locations and

         16  yet we're spending money in the budget on issues

         17  that I don't know that we should be spending it on.

         18  So I wanted to bring that up and I think what's

         19  ultimately going to wind up happening for the Task

         20  Force is that groups will sprout up that will

         21  provide this service and groups will come before the

         22  City Council in their various delegations and

         23  they'll ask for additional funding to provide these

         24  types of training and the Council will ultimately

         25  try to fund them and they will incur a cost well
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          2  beyond the $30,000 that was mentioned in your

          3  testimony for the brochures and there will be an

          4  actual cost to the taxpayers.  And I guess now you

          5  know why I sit the furthest to the right today.  But

          6  I think that ultimately in government we have to

          7  look at maybe providing more classes to teach people

          8  how to speak English, how to read English, how to

          9  write English and maybe a little less of the funding

         10  in trying to do brochures in the multiple languages.

         11    And I'll tell you I know that in my District, I

         12  have a polish, an Albanian, and Italian immigrants,

         13  and we can't get any brochures up until this, it's

         14  the first time I've ever heard that polish would be

         15  included, but in the Department for the Ageing, none

         16  would be available for our seniors.  I don't think

         17  it's possible for all of us in every government

         18  agency to write brochures in every single language

         19  that the City of New York needs to get every single

         20  worker their brochures in their particular languages

         21  for training.  I think some responsibility should be

         22  on those who hire these individuals to train them

         23  and if they have to train them in their own

         24  language, then so be it.  That should be the

         25  responsibility of the people in the workforce and
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          2  not really governments responsibility.  So I just

          3  wanted to kind of pass my personal view on that

          4  because I think it's important to say.  I think it's

          5  getting too far out of whack with how much money the

          6  government is spending.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  I wanted to

          9  just respond if I might to a couple of points, one

         10  of which is to say that I don't know if you picked

         11  it up, but in my testimony I mentioned pictographs

         12  because part of the issue here is you can write

         13  brochures all you want but if they don't read, if

         14  they're illiterate, and construction workers are

         15  sometimes then you can't get through no matter what

         16  language you speak.  With that said, I think that

         17  once we print whatever the first years allotment of

         18  brochures is, I think they'll be passed from hand to

         19  hand and Xeroxed in the corner store and you know

         20  passed around or shown to each other in a way that

         21  wouldn't cost five cents or whatever it is to make a

         22  copy and you can run off hundreds of them.  And that

         23  was what was happening when Guillermo and I were out

         24  on Roosevelt Avenue the other month, the coldest day

         25  of the year I might add, is that they were passing
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          2  them from hand to hand and say look at this, so I

          3  think that we just have never focused on trying to

          4  tell them before.  That wasn't part of what we ever

          5  looked at, and some effort will go a long way.  The

          6  other thing is, with the Chair's permission to be

          7  off- topic as Council Members get to do, I wanted to

          8  express that, yes, our inspectors are out there more

          9  for overdevelopment and zoning review and our plan

         10  examiners because you guys were good enough to give

         11  us some money so that we could put a special program

         12  in effect for that and we're spending the money and

         13  we're out there and frankly we've got six US

         14  Marshalls with us for people who work without a

         15  permit and ignore our stop work order.  Aside from

         16  scaffolding, we're working on that too.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  And while

         18  I appreciate that, I still think that I hope that my

         19  message isn't lost.  I mean, just for example in the

         20  Department for Education, you know they pass the

         21  Educational Leckly Act (phonetic) that was here in

         22  the Council and it was ultimately vetoed by the

         23  Mayor and then negotiated.  You know we're spending

         24  over $10 million on translating brochures in the

         25  Department of Education, and when you counter this,
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          2  and you look at the accumulative effect from every

          3  single agency, just how much money we're spending

          4  and you're not reaching out to every single person.

          5  I think we do a disservice to those who probably

          6  want to learn English and assimilate better into our

          7  society.  So I'm hoping that that trend starts and

          8  that's why I brought it up, and I don't believe it's

          9  off- topic because the testimony clearly states from

         10  both that we're looking to write again brochures in

         11  multiple languages and perform training in multiple

         12  languages and I'm not so sure that that's the right

         13  direction that we should be taking in the City.

         14                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  If I may just

         15  add to the Commissioner in responding, I think it's

         16  very clear that what led us to be proactive under

         17  the leadership of the Mayor was the life and death

         18  situation that was effecting these workers.  And

         19  there was a sense of urgency in addressing the issue

         20  and while we recognize that it would be ideal if

         21  these workers who speak and understand English,

         22  while they do not.  It is the responsibility of

         23  government to speak the language of those who may be

         24  in harms way and may lose their life and to do what

         25  we're able to do to be able to communicate with
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          2  these workers and enhance their safety and their

          3  protection.  And so when you look at the four

          4  languages that we're talking about and you look at

          5  the group of workers that we are concerned about,

          6  you will find that about 75 percent of these workers

          7  are reached through those four languages.  So I

          8  think what we want to be sure is that, yes, we want

          9  them to learn English, we want them to be able to

         10  understand how important and critical safety is for

         11  them, but until they learn the English language

         12  while they're stepping on a scaffold and putting

         13  their lives at risk we have to speak their language

         14  as government.  So this is the point that --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  I don't

         16  want to turn this hearing into the discussion on

         17  this issue but I'm just going to close by saying

         18  that I think it's an important issue on safety.

         19                 I agree with the number of the points

         20  that were brought up in the Task Force

         21  recommendations.  I believe there should be more

         22  inspections and locations.  I think that there

         23  should be some licensing requirements.  I think

         24  there should be some increased penalties and fees

         25  for those who are not abiding by the law and putting
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          2  unsafe scaffolds up.

          3                 But I also believe that the companies

          4  who are doing business in the City should have

          5  simplicity and they should be working with their

          6  employees and they should be training their

          7  employees and I'm not so sure just how much of a

          8  responsibility of government it is to spend its

          9  resources this way. I think that we should mandate

         10  that they have training and I think that we can do

         11  that and we should be able to step up and look at

         12  other safety mechanisms. But I think the employees

         13  themselves have to step up too, employers themselves

         14  have to step up as well.  So thank you though for

         15  your testimony and I think we can agree to disagree.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you,

         17  Council Member Gallagher.  We'll go to Council

         18  Member Jackson and he'll be followed by Council

         19  Member White.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you

         21  Mr. Chair.  Good morning, everyone.  It's still

         22  morning.

         23                 Let me just say from the onset with

         24  respects to I agree with Council Member Dennis

         25  Gallagher that more money needs to be spent in New
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          2  York City to offer English and language classes to

          3  all those individuals that need to learn English who

          4  their primary language is not English.  I don't

          5  think the City is spending enough in order to

          6  transition immigrant population into the fold in New

          7  York City.  I agree with that wholeheartedly.  Not

          8  only as far as adults, but also as far as children

          9  and all other individuals.

         10                 But I do believe, also I agree with

         11  Commissioner Linares, that until we reach that

         12  agreement where the people of New York City whose

         13  primary language is not English have sufficient

         14  enough to understand English and especially in the

         15  work environment, that we must be able to

         16  communicate with workers in their primary language

         17  so they understand the complexities of the job in

         18  which they are working in, the environment they're

         19  working in, so they understand the risk factors that

         20  may put their lives in jeopardy or the possibility

         21  of injury on the job that could maim them for the

         22  rest of their lives.

         23                 And so I believe that we as a

         24  society, as a government, need to ensure that

         25  individuals that are out there working understand,

                                                            62

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  whether or not they understand that in English or

          3  any other language that before they are doing this

          4  dangerous work that they clearly understand the

          5  dangers, they understand the safety precautions that

          6  must be necessary, whether it's through on the job

          7  training, by someone in their primary language,

          8  whether it's through a video that describes all of

          9  that, or whether it's, Commissioner as you said with

         10  the hand out that they've made copies, but that's

         11  not the ideal situation, that's more on the street

         12  level of trying to get the information to the

         13  individual so they can, the primary thing is really

         14  for them to work so they can feed their family and

         15  pay their rent.  That's their primary objective.  So

         16  I just wanted to say that I agree in some respects

         17  with my colleagues and respectfully disagree in

         18  others that I don't think we're spending enough.  In

         19  fact, our City's budget is $57 billion and I think

         20  considering this is the City of Immigrants that we

         21  must spend information on translation and

         22  communication and in fact I was in Israel just

         23  approximately not more than a month ago and in

         24  Israel all of the signs are in Hebrew, Arabic and

         25  English in order so that the majority of the people
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          2  in that Country they either know Hebrew, Arabic, or

          3  a combination of all three with English.  And I

          4  think that that's great that that County has signs

          5  in all three languages so that all of the people

          6  that live there understand the directions and all

          7  things like that.

          8                 But let me get to my questions if I

          9  may.  Concerning -- I just needed to say that.  What

         10  guarantees, and I'm sorry if I wasn't here earlier,

         11  I may have came in a little late, I was with the

         12  Speaker at a site visit of a school as the Chair of

         13  the Education Committee, but what guarantees are in

         14  place to ensure that none of the information

         15  collected on individual immigrants that are workers

         16  would not be used to track them for federal

         17  immigration purposes.  What's in place right now,

         18  and if you could tell me in a nutshell what's in

         19  place or what is going to be in place to ensure if

         20  I'm a worker that none of the information you get

         21  from me is going to be given to IRS and they're

         22  going to come and put me in handcuffs and take me

         23  away?

         24                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  Council Member

         25   --

                                                            64

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Before you answer

          3  the question I just want to acknowledge the presence

          4  of the Republican Minority Leader and big baseball

          5  fan, Jimmy Oddo.

          6                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  -- Council

          7  Member, in New York City we have an Executive Order,

          8  Executive Order 41 signed by the Mayor that

          9  articulates that we have a privacy policy which is

         10  observed by all City workers that provide services.

         11  And Executive Order 41 stipulates that you are not

         12  to ask the immigration status of a New Yorker that

         13  seeks assistance in any of our agencies or tells,

         14  should you find out in the process and we want to be

         15  sure that consistent with the mandate that we have

         16  to keep the City safe and healthy that the safety of

         17  these workers is paramount.  When we as a City

         18  approach them so that they know their rights, so

         19  that they have access to the services whether it be

         20  training or the services of any agency and that they

         21  should not be concerned whatsoever with their

         22  immigration status.  Because it will stay basically

         23  with us, the information that we have.  Our interest

         24  is really to enhance their safety and their

         25  protection.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  But that's a

          3  City agency. If I'm an immigrant and I'm looking for

          4  a job and this guy that's trying to hire me asked me

          5  what my immigration status is, and if I don't tell

          6  him and say Executive Order 41 says I don't have to

          7  communicate that to you, I know I'm not going to get

          8  a job.  I may not be able to work.  But one thing is

          9  with a City agency.  Are you telling me that all of

         10  the employers that are hiring immigrants know

         11  Executive Order 41 and are following Executive Order

         12  41, because as an example I'm using myself as an

         13  immigrant and if I'm looking for a job and someone

         14  asked me and if I know I want to work because my

         15  family has to eat and I have to pay rent, so I mean

         16  what guarantees in place as far as the employers or

         17  other people that because the City is not hiring me,

         18  you're not hiring me to do the work, the employers

         19  are.  What guarantees are in place for that?

         20                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  Usually it's

         21  whenever there is an understanding between a worker

         22  and a contractor that hires that worker it's

         23  mutually agreed, understanding that takes place

         24  within them of course observing the rules and laws

         25  that are established.  We look at our local laws and
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          2  our policies and that is what guides us as we

          3  intervene or interconnect with those contractors who

          4  hire the workers and it's usually an understanding

          5  that takes place between the worker and the person

          6  who hires.  When there is, in the City of New York,

          7  any sign of intimidation or harassment, we have laws

          8  that protect workers when that is the case and we

          9  want to be proactive making workers aware, and also

         10  those who employ them that those laws are in place.

         11  If you violate then, using if you were to find out

         12  the status of any worker, to either exploit them or

         13  not pay them, we have laws in place that protect

         14  them, but again, there is a grey line there when it

         15  comes to the arrangement or understanding between

         16  the two.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes, I know

         18  that most employers if they're looking for workers,

         19  you know basically they want somebody that's going

         20  to work and I hope they're not asking people their

         21  immigration status, but you said you have a

         22  relationship, has any of the agencies determined

         23  whether or not employers or others have been asking

         24  for immigration status in violation of Executive

         25  Order 41 and what if anything has occurred as a
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          2  result of if you found that employers or others have

          3  violated Executive Order 41?  I mean, do you have

          4  any citations, do you have any examples?  Has that

          5  occurred, and what if anything has been done to an

          6  employer or others that have violated Executive

          7  Order 41?

          8                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  Executive

          9  Order 41 only pertains to employers of the City of

         10  New York and gets a mandate to such employers, but

         11  it does not refer to other jurisdictions such as

         12  federal laws, State laws, which often regulate,

         13  State laws regulate a lot of the employment

         14  regulations and oversight.  And so as far as

         15  employees of the City of New York, and the role that

         16  it plays, we do not get whatsoever involved whenever

         17  the status of a worker --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  But overall,

         19  how is Executive Order 41 then being monitored

         20  and/or monitored to determine whether or not an

         21  employer or others are violating Executive Order 41?

         22    If you're telling me Executive 41 only applied to

         23  City employees and no one else, if I'm an employer,

         24  Executive 41 means nothing to me.  Is that correct?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KHALILLI:
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          2  Executive Order 41 only pertains to New York City

          3  government agencies and again that law was passed --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  I'm sorry to

          5  interrupt but I need you to state your name for the

          6  record and then you can continue.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KHALILLI:  Good

          8  morning, I'm Azi Khalilli, I am the Deputy

          9  Commissioner for the Mayor's Office of Immigrant

         10  Affairs.  And thank you for inviting us this

         11  morning.

         12                 Executive Order 41 was passed to make

         13  sure that all New Yorkers have access to services

         14  provided by City government and we wanted to make

         15  sure that New Yorkers were not discriminated against

         16  on the basis of their immigration status --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  By the City

         18  of New York.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KHALILLI:  By the

         20  City of New York, however, the relationship between

         21  employee and employer has been regulated as the

         22  Commissioner stated by labor laws and also federal

         23  laws.  Immigration status, that relationship between

         24  an immigrant worker and an employer has been

         25  regulated by the federal laws as you know.  And all
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          2  employees are required to provide documentation to

          3  their employers and employers are required by law to

          4  ask for documentation to show that employee is

          5  legal. So, therefore, New York City government can

          6  not intervene in that relationship and we can not,

          7  Executive Order 41 does not override those laws.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, let me

          9  just ask a question with respects to talk about the

         10  training of workers and training about safety on the

         11  job before they deal with this.  What guarantees

         12  exist that other groups that are doing the training,

         13  unions, schools, and other groups are not violating

         14  employees rights by asking what their immigration

         15  status is?  What's in place to ensure that that

         16  happens, or that that does not happen, that their

         17  rights are not violated by saying okay I'm going to

         18  this school and I want to have this training so I

         19  have to pay X amount of dollars or the employers

         20  going to pay it if I'm going to a union, and they

         21  say what's your immigration status?  What guarantees

         22  that we know that they're not asking what the

         23  immigration status of the workers?  What's in place?

         24                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  It's

         25  prohibited, but --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I understand

          3  it's prohibited.

          4                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  -- Let me

          5  answer in a different way which is the independent

          6  training providers are only allowed to provide the

          7  training if they follow a curriculum that's approved

          8  by the Department.  So, if we found out that someone

          9  was asking immigrant status or social security

         10  number, we could take their approval away and they

         11  would go out of business.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, and

         13  have you looked at --

         14                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  This is a

         15  new sense --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I'm sorry.

         17                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  I'm sorry,

         18  this is a new --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  No go ahead.

         20                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  --

         21  Sensitivity for us though.  In other words, we

         22  haven't previously tied things to people's social

         23  security numbers before identify fraud and before

         24  that and before this sensitivity.  So we need to

         25  shift our focus away from that and give them in all
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          2  sorts of licensing areas now we need to change that

          3  and give them an independent tracking number that's

          4  not tied to their status in any way, shape, or form.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  How many

          6  groups and unions and other groups are doing this

          7  training, give or take?  Twenty, fifty, a hundred,

          8  five hundred, how many give or take?

          9                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  My Director

         10  says about 25.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  About 25.

         12  And I assume that if I'm a union or a school or a

         13  group and we have employees that are coming in that

         14  want to have this training, do they fill out an

         15  application or what?

         16                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Have you

         18  looked at those applications to ensure that those

         19  applications are compliant with, not asking those

         20  questions that have to be asked?

         21                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  We are going

         22  to do that. We are in the process of it but not, I

         23  can't answer your question right now.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         25                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  But yes,
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          2  absolutely, we understand from the Task Force that

          3  that's a sensitivity.  The other thing is that we

          4  need to look at their curriculums because we believe

          5  the curriculums are way out of date, and therefore,

          6  asking for things that were needed 20 years ago that

          7  aren't needed now and by conversely showing things

          8  that we need to show the new technology as well.

          9  Some of these motors for instance operate different

         10  than others.  The Training Requirements Working

         11  Group, which I quoted in my testimony was charged

         12  with doing that.  And as I mentioned, I think before

         13  you arrived, my Director Susan Long of licensing is

         14  in charge of that and we'll be convening that

         15  working group.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So, is this

         17  Task Force, is it going to be continuous as a Task

         18  Force that reviewed the who implementation process

         19  because for example if the new curriculum has to be

         20  developed and be updated and I think since you have

         21  25 groups it easier to say e- mail or fax us your

         22  application process to ensure that the application

         23  doesn't violate anyone's rights as far as asking

         24  for, like you said, their social security number or

         25  their immigration status.  And that's pretty easy to
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          2  do and can easily be done.  You agree, that's pretty

          3  easy?

          4                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yes.

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

          6  What the Task Force what envision is we'll meet on a

          7  quarterly basis, the whole Task Force, and we will

          8  be reporting different pieces of the implementation.

          9    And one of those is the Working Group that we're

         10  talking about and that group will be required to

         11  audit a certain number of programs and certainly

         12  we'll take it under advisement and we will look at

         13  the opportunities of what questions are asked when

         14  they come in the door as part of the application

         15  process.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Let me talk

         17  about the training for a second.  It was mentioned

         18  about levels of understanding and education levels

         19  of the people that mainly are doing this job and I

         20  guess if I'm an employer and I need people to do the

         21  work, I want to make sure that they know what

         22  they're doing. But when it comes to the very

         23  technical nature of the job, I quite don't

         24  understand the leap and someone can communicate to

         25  me how are you getting the workers to understand the
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          2  more technical aspect, the very technical aspects of

          3  the job?  Is that through giving them a manual and

          4  saying okay read this, or is it via a videotape so

          5  that they can see, or is it by both giving them the

          6  pictorial or other material and/or videotape and/or

          7  a hands- on with a demonstration project that may be

          8  a part of the training?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         10  So there's a couple of pieces when you talk about

         11  training for the job.  There's the actual job that

         12  they're doing while they're on the scaffold and then

         13  there's the operation of the scaffold.  So let's

         14  talk about the operation of the scaffold first.  The

         15  first piece is that he needs to know how and what he

         16  should know about using that scaffold so that's when

         17  he goes to the training organization, gets trained.

         18  That's the first piece.  He gets a certificate

         19  saying that he has taken the training class, he

         20  understands the mechanics of how it works.  And the

         21  second piece of --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Can you hold

         23  it right there one second, before you go to second

         24  piece, the first piece so is my primary language is

         25  Spanish --
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

          3  I go to a Spanish class and I learn the

          4  requirements, the curriculum --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And I get a

          6  certificate saying that I've --

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

          8  That I've attended the class and I've successfully

          9  understood the material.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So then

         11  continue with the second piece.

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         13  So then the second piece is that now I'm on the job

         14  and I get hired by you and I tell you that I know

         15  how to operate, I've taken my class, see here's my

         16  certificate and I know how to do masonry work,

         17  pointing for example.  So the employer does one

         18  thing, which is to make sure that he understands on

         19  how to operate this particular scaffold.  So he goes

         20  through a hands- on process and he certifies, the

         21  rigger or foreman certifies that okay Joe you know

         22  how to work this because I just showed you how to do

         23  it, and I'm going to under my license or under me

         24  being a foreman I'm going to allow you to use this

         25  rig. So that's the second piece.  And then of course
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          2  the third piece is the actual work, the pointing or

          3  painting or whatever.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So in

          5  essence, whoever is supervising the job, site

          6  supervisor, has a responsibility to ensure that the

          7  workers are only working in their competency area.

          8  Is that correct?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         10  That's correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So for

         12  example if I'm masonry and I'm doing masonry work,

         13  you know you're not going to say Robert go over

         14  there and work on the scaffolding if in fact I have

         15  not been trained in scaffolding.  Is that correct?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         17  Right.  So you've had two things.  You've had the

         18  certificate from the company or the union and then

         19  the second piece is that I, the supervisor, have

         20  shown you how to use the rig before you go up on it.

         21

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         24  And that's critical.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  But then if
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          2  my supervisor tells me to go over here, even if I

          3  don't have training in it, you know, I'm more apt to

          4  follow what my supervisor says --

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

          6  Well I think you --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- And not

          8  say listen I don't have a certificate and I'm not

          9  going to do it.

         10                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  So the thing

         11  about riggers is that we license them and so the

         12  other piece of legislation that you're looking at

         13  today is about penalties.  So if you're a rigger and

         14  you do that to someone and they are not trained and

         15  you're telling them to do something that they're not

         16  qualified to do, than we're going to take your

         17  license away.  As well as that, because the guy

         18  can't work as a rigger anymore if he doesn't have a

         19  license, right?  The other piece of it though is the

         20  stop work thing that is buried in that legislation.

         21  Where we have the right if a rigger repeatedly,

         22  repeatedly, repeatedly I want to stress that,

         23  because it's not about stopping construction, but

         24  repeatedly abuses his privileges as a licensee,

         25  we'll stop the work and that would hurt the owner as
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          2  well.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, so

          4  you're telling me that there's guarantees in place

          5  and penalties on the employer or whoever's the site

          6  coordinator of that company if in fact they instruct

          7  me as a worker to work outside of my jurisdiction

          8  and that the penalties are severe enough?

          9                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  That's the

         10  legislation I hope you'll be voting on.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  That's all

         12  for now, I'll come back.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you, Mr.

         14  Jackson.  I just want to jump in before I get to

         15  Council Member White on a quick follow- up.  In the

         16  instance that an immigrant working on a job site is

         17  caught without a training card, what is the penalty

         18  if you could state for the record?  I believe

         19  there's a penalty in the legislation.  And can such

         20  a violation be cause for future immigration problems

         21  for that person?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         23  So if we show up on a job- site and the have not

         24  shown us their certificate of fitness, we can stop

         25  the job.  And the penalty for that, that we write to
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          2  the rigger, is the first offense at minimum is

          3  $1,500 and the default is 25, the second offense

          4  would be 2,500 and the default up to 15,000.  If we

          5  found also that for example that he did not inspect

          6  the job site and there's no record of that, again it

          7  would be 1,200 with a second offense of 2,500.

          8                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  But the

          9  point is also to hold the owners and the contractors

         10  as responsible as well.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Mr. Linares, I

         12  don't know if you care to add about the immigration

         13  problems.  Has that been thought out yet or is that

         14  something that still has to be determined?

         15                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  No, we're

         16  not doing it for those reasons.

         17                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  There is no

         18  penalty of the worker.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  There's no

         20  penalty and the way the system will be set up it

         21  won't create any future immigration problems.

         22                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  That's

         23  correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay, thank you.

         25  Council Member White.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Thank you very

          3  much.  I echo the same concerns and the comments of

          4  my colleague Council Member Gallagher, so I won't

          5  have to go over them again.  But there's something

          6  just not right with the Building Department and

          7  Immigrations and if I heard you correctly, you're

          8  not allowed to ask the status of an individual based

          9  on Executive Order 41 if a person wants to work for

         10  the City of New York.  Is that correct?

         11                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  No, that's not

         12  correct.  The workers that we're talking about are

         13  workers within the private sector.  So that really

         14  doesn't --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Okay, because

         16  one of the things I know in my District as honest as

         17  we are possibly trying to be, there seems to be no

         18  responsibility on the part of the employer in hiring

         19  people so in sense we're in a capitalistic society.

         20  You know, they want more for less and as honest as

         21  this effort is, it's really not addressing the fact

         22  that I believe my other colleague Council Member

         23  Comrie left, where if you can't ask, if you can't

         24  ask a person what their status is, and God forbid

         25  the get into an accident and they don't understand
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          2  English or they're fearful and I'm looking at many

          3  of the issues here, they're not going to go to the

          4  hospital.  They're not going to seek medical

          5  attention.

          6                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  The issue of

          7  immigration standards if a federal issue.  And it's

          8  the federal government that has oversight and

          9  oversees those laws that are set.  So that when a

         10  New Yorker is engaged in working in our City, to the

         11  benefit of the City, or needs to access the services

         12  that our agencies provide for all New Yorkers,

         13  immigration standards is not something that we look

         14  at whether that person needs to access a hospital or

         15  has a child and needs to access the schools or any

         16  other type of service that we provide as a

         17  municipality.  So, the federal government does the

         18  job that they need to do.  We are charged are

         19  ensuring the safety and the health of the City, so

         20  that includes workers in this particular case who

         21  have put themselves in jeopardy and that is not in

         22  the interest of the City to see people put

         23  themselves in harms way and so we are approaching

         24  this issue working closely with the industry,

         25  working closely with the workers and those who hire
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          2  them, so that it's not in the interest of any

          3  contractor to put the workers that they hire in

          4  harms way to begin with.  So this is about safety

          5  and also enhancing the health of the City at the

          6  same time.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  I beg to

          8  differ with you. I'm picking up dissent that this

          9  body doesn't understand that you know individuals

         10  want jobs to take care of their families and

         11  rightfully so.  But in terms of harms way, that

         12  nebulous kind of definition, I go, and everybody

         13  gets up in the morning to go to work if they are

         14  blessed to have a job, and you are in harms way

         15  according to how I'm picking up what you're saying

         16  by getting on a bus or a train.  Or if you get on a

         17  Long Island railroad and they got that gap there,

         18  their feet falling between there.  That's harms way,

         19  but that's not what I'm relating to.  I'm saying we

         20  have scrupulous employers who hire people to do the

         21  job to increase their profits and it would be to

         22  their advantage, I'm not putting whether it's a

         23  majority, minority, I'm saying having a few is too

         24  many, and they want to get a job done and get the

         25  most profit. So it seems as though we jump from the
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          2  City and the worker and we've eliminated the

          3  employer.  I see on Northern Boulevard, early in the

          4  morning, trucks coming by and people jumping up to

          5  get into the truck to go to work.  And some of these

          6  trucks have signs on them. What construction

          7  company, whatever.  Then you have another level of

          8  individuals who the employer looks for, that's the

          9  foreman of the people that's going to get on the

         10  truck and they get X amount for getting X amount of

         11  people. So when you talk about the effort of putting

         12  people in harms way, we can do that on paper, but in

         13  practice if we want to fool ourselves, okay, and

         14  tell ourselves we're doing a good job, then yes,

         15  let's put it on paper and pretend we're doing a good

         16  job.  But we know in our restaurants and in this

         17  scaffold one, people are making a tremendous profit

         18  off of the lack of knowledge of people who have

         19  something to hide that want to be in this great City

         20  that we have that wants to make a good living and

         21  they work and they're not getting physical exams

         22  because they don't know that their rights are.  We

         23  don't have anything in place for really, I think my

         24  colleague Mr. Jackson said, he went to Israel and he

         25  say three signs.  I went to the Dominican Republic
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          2  and I saw five Country names that were automatic

          3  that said to be Dominican, one of them being Israel

          4  because of whatever relationship.  But the bottom

          5  line is, the reason why in Israel you saw those

          6  signs Council Member Jackson, is based on if you

          7  look at the business.  If business is done in

          8  A-ka-ka (phonetic) language, I'm going to learn that

          9  language because business is being done. And what

         10  I'm saying is in Queens there about a hundred and

         11  some odd different languages being spoken and at

         12  what point do we focus on what many other Countries

         13  focus on, and that is you must learn the language of

         14  the Country that your in.  It seems like we're

         15  backing up.  You don't have to learn it.  We're

         16  going to read it to you in how you understand it.

         17  Okay.  And that is a detriment because those who

         18  don't understand the language of the Country that

         19  they're in, can never understand the laws of the

         20  Country their working in, and can always be taken

         21  advantage of.  So I would join with my colleague

         22  Gallagher and also offer to the Chair that we take a

         23  look at how we do business in terms of the money

         24  that we spend and teaching how to do business in the

         25  City of New York and other peoples languages and
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          2  their not in a position to learn the language of the

          3  Country there in.  Their children are in a better

          4  position.

          5                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Let me just

          6  say that a concern that you're talking about is a

          7  huge overarching problem for the City, all it's

          8  constituents and its entire population --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  No, no I'm

         10  talking about working.  If I want to build a

         11  building I'd go to Northern Boulevard.  I find

         12  somebody who tells me they know what they're doing,

         13  can't speak English, and I need 20 people.  Get me

         14  20 people, I give you X amount a head, and this is

         15  the job I want you to do.

         16                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  No, I hear

         17  what you're saying.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  And that's

         19  what's being done I'm saying.  Are you denying

         20  that's not being done?

         21                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Of course

         22  not.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Okay.

         24                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  What I'm

         25  saying --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  That's my

          3  concern.

          4                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  -- Is that

          5  in the meanwhile people are being killed.  And that

          6  this Task Force focused, I guess maybe you missed my

          7  testimony but --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  I did, I'm

          9  sorry.

         10                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  -- We talked

         11  about how we're doing a top- down as well as a

         12  bottom- up approach in order to try to make the

         13  catchment areas as large as possible.  We believe

         14  that we won't solve the problem over night, we

         15  believe we'll take steps to make it better every day

         16  for those people who are working on scaffolds.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  And I want to

         18  apologize because I was on the Welfare Committee

         19  Hearing across the street, and I arrived here, two

         20  meetings in conflict.  But I really do have a

         21  concern about that and I think that in order to

         22  really solve a problem, you have to face it for what

         23  it really is and not for what you hoped for it to

         24  be.

         25                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  We agree,
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          2  and that's why we had out of the 51 members on a

          3  Task Force, it's a huge Task Force, much larger than

          4  they are normally, and that's why we have such broad

          5  representation so that the voices of people who are

          6  your constituents and the constituents of every

          7  Council Member are heard on the Task Force and it

          8  was in the Consensus Building that we came up with

          9  the 13 recommendations that we're proposing today.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Thank you very

         11  much.  Nice seeing you --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you Council

         13  Member White. I want to acknowledge that we've been

         14  joined by Council Members Mendez and Fidler and if

         15  there are any members on the Committee that have not

         16  yet asked questions, if they would like to do so, we

         17  can do it now, if not.  I would like to thank the

         18  Commissioner, both Commissioners for coming and

         19  their work on the Task Force and at this time we

         20  will get to hear from members of the public on these

         21  issues.

         22                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Thank you

         23  Mr. Chair and City Council Members.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Peter Fontanes

         25  from the Hispanics and Real Estate and Construction,
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          2  Jack Kittle, this looks like DC 9 and Kenneth

          3  Buettner, and I hope I pronounced that correctly

          4  Kenneth and you can correct me, also from --  okay,

          5  gentlemen you can begin in any order and just start

          6  by stating your name for the record and then you can

          7  right into your testimony.

          8                 MR. FONTANES:  Mr. Chairman, Members

          9  of the Committee, my name is Peter Fontanes, and I'm

         10  the Chair and Founder of the National Association of

         11  Hispanics in Real Estate and Construction, as well

         12  as the Organization's Chair in the State of New

         13  York.

         14                 The organization was founded in 1996

         15  to advocate for our rights to be heard in the City

         16  as business owners, managers, professionals, workers

         17  and students in industries that for too long kept us

         18  off the ladder of success.  Since then, there has

         19  been a steady increase of Hispanic American and

         20  migrants successfully involved in the building,

         21  construction and real estate industries. We have

         22  also seen construction unions, who have long been

         23  resistant to encouraging minority enrollment

         24  beginning to open up their registration roles to

         25  Hispanic Americans and other minorities. This does
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          2  not mean we do not have more to accomplish in other

          3  areas but some progress is undeniably being made.

          4  We believe and are proud that it was through some of

          5  our organization's various programs and initiatives

          6  that has contributed to this success.

          7                 We are also particularly but humbly

          8  proud that it was our organization that first raised

          9  the alarm when too many construction workers were

         10  dying due to unsafe and illegal conditions on

         11  projects in our city.

         12                 When the New York State Association

         13  of Hispanics in Real Estate and Construction saw

         14  five deaths of construction workers in separate

         15  incidents within a space of two months, we knew that

         16  we had to step in and sound the alarm bell.

         17                 Today, just two months after that

         18  press conference the City Council is making a

         19  significant statement in addressing the present

         20  safety crisis confronting the construction workers

         21  in this City by introducing legislation which would

         22  enhance notification and inspection requirements for

         23  scaffold use and would also increase penalties for

         24  violations of scaffold use requirements.

         25                 I commend the Chair of this
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          2  Committee, Eric Dilan, and all other Committee

          3  Members who have acted expeditiously and forcefully

          4  to react to this crisis.

          5                 We also give credit to New York City

          6  Mayor Michael Bloomberg, Commissioner of Buildings

          7  Judith Lancaster, Commissioner of Immigrant Affairs

          8  Guillermo Linares and their dedicated and talented

          9  staff members.  We also thank our other fellow

         10  members of the Department of Building's Suspended

         11  Scaffold Worker Safety Task Force for their

         12  contribution and support that has resulted in the

         13  release of the Scaffold Safety recommendations.

         14  These and other initiatives have already resulted in

         15  a remarkable decline in accidental deaths and

         16  injuries in our industries in the last couple of

         17  months.

         18                 It goes to show that involvement and

         19  engagement by the private sector in the public

         20  sector can make a difference when it becomes a

         21  matter of life and death and in this case, life has

         22  become much safer and much better for the workers of

         23  our industries and for the people of our great City.

         24                 This is where the importance of this

         25  legislation becomes evident and it is imperative
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          2  that you pass this measure immediately.

          3  Unfortunately, a few years ago, our organization

          4  lost a member and good friend Manny Gonzalez, who

          5  plummeted five stories to his death due to a faulty

          6  rope tie on a scaffold rail around an open

          7  stairwell.  Time is wasting and lives are at stake.

          8  It is in his memory and all the other 29

          9  construction workers who have perished this past

         10  year which brings us here to wholeheartedly endorse

         11  this law.

         12                 I personally support the bill before

         13  us today because of one simple maxim.  No matter

         14  what the immigration status of a worker may be or

         15  whether that worker is a union or a non- union

         16  worker, we can not turn our head and look the other

         17  way while fraud, exploitation and injustice are

         18  perpetrated against any worker.  To do less will be

         19  contrary to common decency, social justice and

         20  indeed it would be downright un-American.  Moral and

         21  ethical imperatives dictate that we lend a helping

         22  hand and present a strong fist to combat abuse

         23  against those who are hard working honest people,

         24  especially those who help build our communities.

         25                 The home remodeling and construction

                                                            92

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  industry, especially in the open shop environment,

          3  is predominately employing workers who are mostly

          4  from Latin America and Asia.  Many are undocumented

          5  immigrant working in construction without steady

          6  work so they take unreliable, low- paid, and often

          7  dangerous jobs to often support themselves and their

          8  families.

          9                 You will also see many other ethnic

         10  groups and nationalities besides Hispanics, such as

         11  Pakistanis, Indians and Asians who have a large

         12  number of their own working in such areas as

         13  waterproofing, window replacements and roofing.

         14  These are the very industries where scaffolding is a

         15  necessary tool of the trade. So this is not just a

         16  Latino problem.  Even though Hispanics are by far

         17  the largest ethnic group involved in this issue, all

         18  must be protected and assisted.

         19                 In a recent study undertaken by the

         20  New York City Bar Association it was noted that too

         21  frequently scaffolding on non- union jobs were

         22  substandard or home- made railings were missing,

         23  workers on sloped roofs were not tied off with

         24  proper harnesses and barricades were not erected

         25  around open stairwells.
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          2                 Nearly two- thirds of the inspections

          3  found at least one violation of an OSHA standard.

          4  In construction trades like roofing and masonry

          5  violation rates exceeded 80 percent and multiple

          6  violations at a single site were very common.  OSHA

          7  classified virtually all of the violations as

          8  serious and frequently assigned them the agency's

          9  highest gravity score.  For example, nearly two-

         10  thirds of worker fall protection violations among

         11  general contractors of multi- family hosing were

         12  tens, the most serious on a one to ten scale.

         13                 Inspections in New York City were

         14  substantially more likely to find violations than

         15  were inspections elsewhere in the State.  For

         16  example, your home Borough Councilman Dilan, there

         17  were over 80 percent of inspections in Brooklyn,

         18  Manhattan and the Bronx found violations compared to

         19  62 percent Statewide and 50 percent Upstate, and

         20  each inspection that found violations in these

         21  boroughs found substantially more violations than

         22  did inspections elsewhere, 4.49 violations per

         23  inspection in Manhattan, the Bronx and Brooklyn,

         24  3.36 Statewide and 2.86 Upstate.  Some of the

         25  highest violations were among New York City multi-
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          2  family residential building general contractors.

          3  Again, an 80 percent rate in Brooklyn for instance.

          4  The higher rates in New York City reflect a

          5  widespread employment of undocumented workers and

          6  day- laborers in the City's construction industry

          7  especially at smaller non- union construction sites.

          8    Since these workers often speak little or no

          9  English and fear employer reprisals if they complain

         10  to the authorities about safety lapses, they are

         11  often left to work without the appropriate safety

         12  equipment and in violation of correct safety

         13  procedures.  This is reflected in the widespread

         14  OSHA safety standards violations and accidental

         15  injuries.

         16                 In 2001, OSHA began to record whether

         17  or not a construction accident victim primarily

         18  spoke a language other than English at the worksite.

         19    Since the, foreign- language speakers were the

         20  victims in 48 percent of accident inspections

         21  Statewide and 67 percent in New York City in which a

         22  worker was killed or at least three workers were

         23  hospitalized overnight.  Immigrants were the victims

         24  in 11 of the 13 such incidents in Queens, the county

         25  with the largest proportion of immigrant residents
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          2  in the State. Clearly immigrant workers suffered

          3  disproportionately because of widespread OSHA safety

          4  violations.

          5                 Violations of the scaffolding and

          6  fall prevention standards which protect workers at

          7  elevated heights accounted for nearly one- third of

          8  all violations.  There were especially large numbers

          9  of serious accidents in masonry and roofing work and

         10  half of the inspections found serious violations.

         11  Roofing, siding, sheet metal and masonry

         12  contractors, occupations where workers spend most of

         13  their time at elevated heights accounted for nearly

         14  one- quarter of the violations.  In 17 of the

         15  accidents since 2001 with immigrant victims, OSHA

         16  found multiple violations in particular with

         17  scaffolding and/or fall protection standards, most

         18  of these accidents by the way were fatal.

         19                 It is clear that this horrific

         20  situation mandates that this Committee recommended

         21  the passage of these ordinances now.  Jian Quo Shen,

         22  Angel Segovia, Manuel Falcon and others who passed

         23  away on construction sites are no longer with us.

         24  However, their memories and the circumstances of

         25  their passing linger strongly over this City and our
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          2  industry and cries out that you pass this

          3  legislation now.

          4                 In conclusion we must do everything

          5  possible to rid the greed and evil that threaten the

          6  well- being and lives of all construction workers.

          7  Although we have made progress we believe that as

          8  the Commissioner said, that a single death is one

          9  many.  We should not be so callous as to think that

         10  we could survive in a society if even one more

         11  worker is needlessly and critically injured or

         12  senselessly killed.  This would not be the America

         13  and New York City I know and love.

         14                 We must always be constantly vigilant

         15  and at the forefront of renewed efforts to

         16  significantly reduce the number of fatal workplace

         17  injuries and death especially at a time when

         18  construction activity is as intense as it is

         19  projected to be in the next few years.

         20                 We must show the rest of the world

         21  that we are capable of coming up with solutions that

         22  just fair and humane.  I believe to affect the

         23  amendments being proposed to us today by this

         24  Committee does just that.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

          3                 MR. KITTLE:  Thank you Mr. Chairman,

          4  Committee Members.  My name is Jack Kittle, I'm a

          5  representative with the International Union of

          6  Painters and Allied Trade's District Council Nine.

          7  I apologize that I don't have a written statement to

          8  put in but I got this while I was out of town last

          9  week and I got home late last night so for that

         10  reason it will be quick.  I just wanted to thank the

         11  Committee for giving us a chance to come here today

         12  and state our support for the recommendations of the

         13  Task Force and we'd also like to thank the Mayor and

         14  Commissioner Lancaster for their efforts in reaching

         15  out to every stakeholder in the industry and hearing

         16  from all sides of the issue.

         17                 As I'm sitting in the room though I'm

         18  listening to a lot of the questions from the

         19  Committee Members and it was occurring to me that I

         20  don't know if everybody understands the construction

         21  industry and supported scaffolding.  Now someone

         22  who's worked for 20 years as a bridge painter, I may

         23  not have initials after my name but I do understand

         24  what it's like to work on scaffolding and I can't

         25  address all the questions that came up in my head
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          2  sitting in the back of the room in two minutes but I

          3  would be very happy to volunteer to sit with anybody

          4  who has questions about the actual nuts and bolts of

          5  working on a scaffold at any time.  And that's all I

          6  have.

          7                 Thank you Mr. Chairman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you and I

          9  think it would be safe to say that not too many

         10  Members of this Committee have spent a significant

         11  amount of time on any scaffold.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  I did Mr.

         13  Chair, but the record is sealed as far as I was

         14  told.

         15                 MR. BUETTNER:  Good afternoon

         16  Chairman Dilan and Members of the Committee, my name

         17  is Ken Buettner, I am President of York Scaffold in

         18  Long Island City, I'm third generation in our family

         19  business which has been in New York City since 1928.

         20    I am a past President and 30 year member of the

         21  Scaffold Industry Association, our National

         22  Association of US and Canadian manufacturers,

         23  installers and scaffold users.  And I am a member of

         24  the Hoisting and  Scaffolding Trades Association for

         25  over 20 years and sit on its Board of Directors.
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          2  I've been a member of the DOB's Suspended Scaffold

          3  Worker Safety Task Force and lastly, I hold a New

          4  York City Department of Building Special Riggers

          5  license and have since 1985.

          6                 I thank the Committee for

          7  acknowledging the work of the Task Force and moving

          8  to put its recommendation into law. During my 32

          9  years in this industry I have seen complicated and

         10  impressive scaffold jobs done well but I've often

         11  seen both simple and complex scaffolds installed and

         12  used in a truly dangerous manner.  We would be wrong

         13  to think a scaffold which was dangerous was either

         14  installed that way or used that way on purpose.

         15  Nobody sets out to install a scaffold so that it

         16  might kill or injure themselves, their co- workers

         17  or passersby.  These Rube Goldberg installations are

         18  the result of well- intentioned people who are

         19  either truly ignorant of how to do the job properly

         20  or choose to take short- cuts.  I hope this

         21  legislation will help to increase safe installation

         22  and use of suspended scaffolds.

         23                 While generally supportive of the

         24  Intros, I have concerns with one item.  The DOB has

         25  long required that suspended scaffolds hung from
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          2  outrigger beams must be filed with and approved by

          3  the Department.  Intro 523 requires notification to

          4  the Department for installation of suspended

          5  scaffolds on C-hooks. This is a very good idea but

          6  to be effective the notification process must be

          7  simple and straightforward or its doomed to total

          8  failure.

          9                 The current process of notification

         10  approval for suspended scaffolds hung from outrigger

         11  beams in any of the five boroughs requires the

         12  physical filing of a CD-5 form at the DOB's

         13  Manhattan office.  This two-day process may work

         14  satisfactorily for large and complex installations

         15  of long durations, weeks or months, and found on the

         16  City's larger buildings.

         17                 However, suspended scaffolds hung

         18  from C-hooks are usually of short duration, a day to

         19  several days, and found on three to five story

         20  buildings in the City's outer boroughs.  If the

         21  rigger is required to come to the DOB's Manhattan

         22  Office to file such small jobs, it may take him or

         23  her longer to do the filing than to physically do

         24  the job itself on the buildings.  Under such a

         25  scenario the burden may tempt some riggers top take
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          2  a change and not notify the Department.  It would

          3  obviate the whole work of the legislation.

          4                 It is my  hope that the DOB will

          5  create a notification process which could be easily

          6  accessed remotely so as to encourage compliance.

          7                 Thank you for your attention.  As

          8  Jack offered to be of assistance having been in the

          9  industry for many years, I would be very happy to

         10  answer any questions and meet with any members who

         11  may wish to understand scaffolding or how this

         12  legislation would affect its implementation.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you, I

         14  appreciate the insight there.  That's actually one

         15  question, there's a point that you brought up in

         16  your testimony that I failed to ask the Department

         17  of Buildings, and that was their process for the

         18  implementation of the permitting process, but I

         19  certainly will reach out to them in terms of what

         20  their needs are on the personnel side to make sure

         21  that the permits are processed in a rapid manner as

         22  to not slow down construction and to make sure if

         23  there's some form of potentially on-line way of

         24  filing for these permits.

         25                 That's one point to follow-up that
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          2  this Committee has to do and we certainly will reach

          3  out to the Department.

          4                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  If I may,

          5  Deputy Commissioner LiMandri had indicated in

          6  private conversation during the Task Forces

          7  deliberations that they were looking to be able to

          8  do that in perhaps a 311 telephone call or on- line

          9  process, and I just wanted to document that that is

         10  an urgent need and hopefully they'll be able to

         11  follow- through in that process.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  It would have

         13  nice to get them on the record saying that.

         14                 MR. FONTANES:  We support this change

         15  in terms of notification because a lot of these --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Just grab the

         17  mike, we can hear you but just grab the mike so that

         18  the tape can hear you.

         19                 MR. FONTANES:  We support this

         20  amendment because many of these small jobs really

         21  handle -- and mostly Indians, and Hispanics, who

         22  have very small companies, it would be very

         23  cumbersome for them, especially related to emergency

         24  jobs, small emergency waterproofing leaks, roofs,

         25  two days notification and going down to the borough
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          2  just first of all very costly, it really affects the

          3  business, and if they're out for two or three hours,

          4  it affects their business.  I have to tell you we

          5  wholeheartedly support that amendment.

          6                 MR. BUETTNER:  If I may offer one

          7  other comment, conversation that was had before

          8  about workers who were stopped in the process of

          9  doing their work who may not have had their training

         10  cards, the way the legislation is written, that

         11  would affect not that employee, but it would affect

         12  the employer.  The employer/licensed rigger would be

         13  the one who receives the violation so it is strongly

         14  to their benefit to be sure that their employees are

         15  trained.  It would not record or impact upon the

         16  employee who is untrained if they were caught.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.  If

         18  there are no questions by my colleagues, I would

         19  like to thank the panel for coming in to testify on

         20  the items on today's agenda.

         21                 MR. BUETTNER:  Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  The next panel

         24  will be Ericka Stallings from the New York

         25  Immigration Coalition, Mr. Paul, and I hope I say
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          2  this right and please correct me if I say it wrong,

          3  Bonfiglio?  Bonfiglio.  Please come to the desk.

          4  And Terry Troia. If you do have any written

          5  statements please give it to the Sergeant at Arms.

          6  You can begin in any order and please start by

          7  stating your name.

          8                 MS. TROIA:  My name is Terry Troia

          9  and I thank Chairperson Dilan, Minority Leader Oddo,

         10  and Committee Members for allowing me to speak this

         11  morning.  I am a Staten Island Pastor and I am a

         12  volunteer and Board Member at El Centrode

         13  Hospitalidad (phonetic) which is a day-labor center

         14  in Port Richmond Staten Island and I served on the

         15  Suspended Scaffold Workers Safety Task Force.  And I

         16  express my thanks to Commissioner Lancaster of the

         17  Department of Buildings and Commissioner Linares of

         18  the Mayor's Office of Immigrant Affairs for inviting

         19  day- laborer center representatives to serve on the

         20  Task Force and I commend the work of the Task Force

         21  for their recommendations.

         22                 The report that has been provided to

         23  you reflects key recommendations that are strongly

         24  supported by those of us who work daily with

         25  immigrant day- laborers and scaffold workers.  We
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          2  strongly support the resolutions that hopefully will

          3  be entered into City Council by the Mayor and we

          4  urge the passage of these resolutions with

          5  expediency because workers lives are at stake.

          6                 I want to speak specifically to

          7  Council Member Comrie's concerns regarding whether

          8  day- laborers who jump into cars on the streets will

          9  go and attend training and assure you that day

         10  laborers and immigrant workers thirst for training

         11  and knowledge to advance themselves and if training

         12  is made available, accessible, evenings and weekends

         13  when construction workers are not working,

         14  absolutely day- laborers and immigrant construction

         15  workers and scaffold workers will absolutely attend

         16  trainings.

         17                 To Council Member Gallagher's

         18  concerns and Council Member White's concerns

         19  regarding language access, training and outreach

         20  must be done in the native languages of the workers

         21  who do the most dangerous work for our City while

         22  affording every worker the opportunity to learn

         23  English which should be the goal of every immigrant

         24  in our Country.

         25                 While I'm here as a worker advocate
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          2  the issue of public safety has not been addressed so

          3  far.  The issue of safety for suspended scaffold

          4  workers is also an issue of public safety for

          5  passersby, and I am sure that to save one incident

          6  of a scaffold worker plunging to his or her death

          7  and involving the injury or death of a passerby and

          8  the lawsuit that that would ensue in the City of New

          9  York would certainly be worth the money spent on

         10  translating the literature and outreach literature

         11  for workers.

         12                 To Council Member Jackson's concern

         13  about training workers with undocumented immigrant

         14  status, it is not going to be cost effective to

         15  employers to develop and implement curriculums in

         16  five different languages nor to pay trainers to

         17  deliver classes in five different languages.  It

         18  would, however, be more effective to establish

         19  training programs, coordinated by third party

         20  entities like not- for- profit worker centers where

         21  the primary concern is the safety of the worker and

         22  advancing their knowledge base.  These kinds of

         23  programs would have to be funded independently and

         24  the City Council could seek the creation of such a

         25  demonstration program that would be multilingual
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          2  training for immigrant workers who are scaffolders.

          3                 I call your attention in this report

          4  to the innovative and creative strategies of

          5  utilizing day- laborer centers and immigrant

          6  advocacy organizations, churches and houses of

          7  worship that are steeped in the effective immigrant

          8  communities to reach out to immigrant scaffold

          9  workers and provide critical information to them on

         10  how to access training in their native languages.

         11  To advise them of safety precautions for the work of

         12  suspended scaffolding in a literacy appropriate and

         13  linguistically appropriate manner.  Recommendation

         14  nine of this Task Force's report is the way to get

         15  out the word in a multiplicity of languages.

         16  Working the streets where day- laborers congregate

         17  looking for work in order to reach the greatest

         18  number of day laborers.

         19                 I call your attention to

         20  recommendation eight, increasing training access

         21  participation and completion and urge that

         22  representative of immigrant day- laborer groups and

         23  centers be a part of the training requirement

         24  working group to help carry out this recommendation

         25  to its fullest potential.  It is key to this
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          2  recommendation success that we do everything

          3  possible to make sure training is accessible and all

          4  scaffold workers regardless of immigration status

          5  can afford, participate and complete training. We

          6  urge the City Council to consider funding consistent

          7  and continual grass- roots outreach efforts so that

          8  day- laborer centers and immigrant advocacy groups

          9  can implement effectively recommendation eight.

         10  Day- laborer centers are non- government funded

         11  entities.  They depend heavily on volunteer

         12  immigrant advocates to do their work, like myself.

         13  Churches and houses of worships do not have outreach

         14  staff to hit the streets with vital information that

         15  can be life saving to immigrant scaffold workers.

         16  And immigrant advocacy groups have a staff over

         17  committed to a broad spectrum of activities designed

         18  to meet overwhelming immigrant need.  Funds targeted

         19  to fulfill this recommendation would then allow this

         20  recommendation to be carried out consistently in a

         21  wide variety of venues to reach the maximum number

         22  of scaffold workers across the five boroughs.  These

         23  outreach efforts can be monitored to measure the

         24  reach of populations, immigrant communities and

         25  language bases and we can track the reduction of
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          2  accidents in those very communities tying the

          3  workers back who may be involved in a future

          4  accident or near accident to where they lived and to

          5  what immigrant community they are connected.  To be

          6  sure that they are getting the outreach resources

          7  necessary and achieving and reaching the information

          8  they need.  The strength of reaching and achieving

          9  the training recommendations in this report really

         10  relies on effective outreach and funding this effort

         11  will make it consistent and effective.  Without

         12  funded outreach efforts, day- laborer centers, such

         13  as El Central and Staten Island end up in the

         14  awkward moral position of getting out life- saving

         15  information without the means to do it effectively

         16  or consistently.  The key to success and engaging

         17  marginalized non-English speaking scaffold workers

         18  is to fund the very mechanisms on the front end that

         19  can achieve effective outreach and get people into

         20  the training programs so that they are trained

         21  scaffold workers how do not injure themselves or

         22  others.

         23                 In conclusion, our day- laborer

         24  center thanks the Task Force for its recommendations

         25  and urge passage of these proposed bills rapidly in
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          2  order to allow the Task Force to achieve its goal of

          3  saving lives.  The most important thing I learned in

          4  this Task Force is that all of us are responsible

          5  for the safety and life preservation of immigrant

          6  workers upon whose backs the progress and success of

          7  this City is achieved.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  You can proceed

         10  in any order.

         11                 MS. STALLINGS:  Good afternoon, my

         12  name is Ericka, Stallings, I'm the Special Projects

         13  Associate of the New York Immigration Coalition, an

         14  umbrella policy and advocacy organization with

         15  approximately 200 member groups throughout New York

         16  State that work with immigrants and refuges.

         17                 I would like to thank the Housing and

         18  Buildings Committee, as well as the Members of the

         19  City Council for allowing our organization to

         20  testify today regarding the findings and the

         21  recommendations of the Scaffold Workers Safety Task

         22  Force.

         23                 We would like to thank Mayor

         24  Bloomberg for addressing the critical issue of

         25  scaffolding safety by taking up the recommendations
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          2  of the Scaffold Worker Safety Task Force formed last

          3  November.  We would also like to thank City Council

          4  Member Erik Martin Dilan for introducing three bills

          5  which begin the process of addressing the grave

          6  safety issues facing workers at construction sites

          7  Citywide.

          8                 The NYC and its member organizations

          9  are concerned about serious workplace safety issues

         10  in the City, particularly the risk facing immigrant

         11  workers who are disproportionately likely to be

         12  injured or killed while on the job.  Nearly half the

         13  victims in construction accidents that occur in New

         14  York State from 2001 to 2004 were immigrants and in

         15  New York City, 67 percent of victims were immigrant

         16  workers.  The Task Force's recommendations

         17  acknowledged the reality that the majority of

         18  workers involved in construction fatalities are

         19  immigrants, whose primary language is not English.

         20  Indeed the Occupational Safety and Health

         21  Administration has found immigration status or

         22  language barrier to be a related factor in 75

         23  percent of the construction deaths in New York City

         24  in 2006.

         25                 While the risks facing construction
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          2  workers are broad, 71 percent of all construction

          3  fatalities in New York City were caused by falls.

          4  And the number of suspended scaffolding incidents

          5  per year in the City has tripled in the past three

          6  years from five in 2004 to over 18 in 2006.  In

          7  response, the Task Force's recommendations and

          8  measures adopted by the Mayor have focused on

          9  improving safety standards around the use of

         10  suspended scaffolds, by providing funding for

         11  increase outreach, the creation of Scaffolding

         12  Enforcement Unit within the DOB dedicated to

         13  proactive investigation of construction sites and

         14  enhanced notification and inspection requirements

         15  and penalties.

         16                 We strongly encourage the members of

         17  this Committee to support three bills addressing

         18  scaffolding safety.  The first bill would require

         19  buildings (sic) to notify the Department of

         20  Buildings between 24 and 48 hours prior to

         21  installation of a C- hook scaffold, the most

         22  dangerous form of scaffolding involved in a majority

         23  of incidents last year.  The bill would also allow

         24  the Department of Buildings to stop work and revoke

         25  licenses where safety violations occur.  The second
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          2  bill would increase penalties for violations and the

          3  third will require daily written inspections by a

          4  trained site supervisor, certifying that a scaffold

          5  is capable of holding four times the maximum

          6  allowable load.

          7                 The Task Force's broader set of

          8  recommendations also provides for greater

          9  multilingual outreach and education for workers that

         10  ensure all workers operating on scaffolding

         11  understand safety and training instructions.  The

         12  Mayor's Office of Immigrant Affairs has already

         13  begun the process of developing and translating

         14  these materials and circulating them at hiring and

         15  work sites around the City.

         16                 The NYIC strongly encourages

         17  Committee members to support the bills and

         18  recommendations as an important step toward

         19  addressing the safety of workers performing some of

         20  the City's most hazardous jobs.

         21                 Thank you for your time.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

         23                 MR. BONFIGLIO:  My name is Paul

         24  Vincent Bonfiglio, I'm a Safety Consultant and have

         25  been for the longest time.  I certainly do
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          2  appreciate the opportunity to discuss and bring my

          3  views to the attention of this Committee.  I'm sorry

          4  to see that so few of you have left.  I have no

          5  objections with these new local laws.  I do object

          6  to what's in them and what was left out of them. The

          7  most interesting thing is, there's no mention of

          8  which standards we're going to enforce.  These past

          9  two labor laws including Labor Law 52 of '05 and

         10  these past ones, there's no mention of what local

         11  laws safety laws on scaffolding they'll enforce.

         12  Just to make a point, sub-Chapter 19 of the

         13  Administrative Code, which is for safety in the

         14  construction industry for public and property

         15  including the workers relates to S-hooks.  I mean,

         16  it's very simple, every S-hook before it's employed,

         17  the parapet wall has to be inspected by a

         18  professional engineer.  That's in the standards.  We

         19  don't refer to that.  We have NORBIT (phonetic), we

         20  completely ignore it.  We form a committee of people

         21  who may be in the construction industry may be

         22  dealing with scaffolds, but have no knowledge of

         23  scaffolds.  There's very few people, including Mr.

         24  Buettner, who goes back with scaffolds a long time.

         25  Suspended scaffolds the standards are enforced by
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          2  the license professional engineer.  Every suspended

          3  scaffold in the City of New York has to be erected,

          4  dismantled under the supervision of a professional

          5  engineer.  Which standards are we enforcing.

          6                 Now we come out with a new law, Local

          7  Law 52 that states to teach this class you have to

          8  belong to New York State Educational Institute.

          9  Where are all the peoples who have the knowledge and

         10  the experience of scaffolds?  We forgot about them.

         11  I would like to go on record right here and state I

         12  know more about scaffolds, all different types of

         13  scaffolds of anyone in New York City.  Not because

         14  I'm a genius, because I've been around so long. I'm

         15  76 years old, I have no axe to grind.  My whole life

         16  was dedicated to protecting people in construction.

         17  I go back to 1963 when I worked long before there

         18  was an OSHA and I also worked for OSHA and I have my

         19  own consultant business.  I'm also a site safety

         20  manager.  I've been approved by the City of New York

         21  to teach the class for site safety managers. I'm on

         22  a Committee for scaffolding, the A10.8 Committee for

         23  ANSI for scaffolding.  I'm not qualified to teach

         24  this class.  I attended a class because I'm

         25  interested in any new standards.  When they came out
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          2  with the new standards on scaffolding I thought it

          3  was incumbent upon me to take a class because the

          4  requirement is I have to take a four hour class to

          5  go on scaffoldings.  I want to know what I'm

          6  required to teach other people.  I attended a class,

          7  it was 100 percent on OSHA standards and the

          8  instructor, not to put him down, he didn't know

          9  nothing (sic) about scaffolding.  I don't want to

         10  discuss this individual. My point on this is we have

         11  standards, which one are we going to enforce.  New

         12  York City has standards on scaffolding.  We're

         13  talking about OSHA.  New York State has standards.

         14  We've been using them 87 years before OSHA came into

         15  existence.  They are better standards than OSHA

         16  standards will ever be. There are things in OSHA

         17  that people don't understand.  There's a standard in

         18  OSHA that says you can not mix different frames.

         19  Well OSHA already went through that.  We reviewed

         20  it. We said you can mix different frames providing

         21  they meet, they match, and so on and so forth.

         22  However, you take the OSHA standard it says you

         23  can't mix them, but there's a directive that says

         24  you can.  How many people know that?  And what are

         25  we teaching?  We're teaching people OSHA standards
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          2  that people don't even know what they're referring

          3  to.  We have more standards on poles.  Did anyone

          4  ever mention a pole scaffold?  New York City, we

          5  just changed the law, all scaffolds over 75 feet in

          6  height needs an engineers drawing.  That wasn't a

          7  standard.  The standards says all scaffolds 75 feet

          8  in height have to be made of non- combustible

          9  material.  So what I'm saying here if we want this

         10  thing to be fruitful, and we want this to protect

         11  the lives of our workers, than we have to

         12  incorporate people who know what they're talking

         13  about, who know what they're teaching.  And lets

         14  take the best educated and experienced people and

         15  let's pick their brain. The dinosaurs like me are

         16  not going to be around much longer.  Like I said,

         17  I'm 76 years old.  I have no reason even to be here.

         18    I should let it go on like it is.  But that's not

         19  my nature.  I've been in safety since 1963, long

         20  before there was an OSHA, with New York State, I

         21  have my own consultant business.  That's why I took

         22  this class.  I want to know what the standards are.

         23  What are the new regulations?  And I learned

         24  nothing, plus I have to give him $250 to take a

         25  class that he taught me nothing. This is ludicrous.
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          2  This is not what the Council is here for.  It's to

          3  make laws to protect people.  We passed a law not

          4  too long ago, Local Law 33 of '91.  It was one page

          5  long.  To people who may not know what Local Law 33

          6  of '91 is, it's the shed laws. Sidewalk sheds in the

          7  City of New York.  First of all to put up a shed you

          8  need a permit, you need an engineers drawing.  Now

          9  Local Law 52 comes along and says if you put a

         10  scaffold on top of that shed we got to get another

         11  permit if it's more than 40 feet in height. So if we

         12  put up a sidewalk shed and put a scaffold on top

         13  we've got to get four permits.  This is ridiculous.

         14  I'm sorry, I appreciate your time and energy.  I

         15  wish more people would stay here because I think its

         16  incumbent upon you as a Council to do more research

         17  on these laws, not that they're bad, it's just

         18  they're putting the emphasis in the wrong places.

         19  To change a law or to add a law all it takes is one

         20  page.  Local Law 33 of '91, all it says if you put

         21  up a sidewalk shed in the City of New York you need

         22  to do something additional. Put up a sign, who put

         23  up the shed, the permit number and the expiration

         24  date.  Plus we changed the wattage on the bulb from

         25  100 watts to 200 watts and we put penalties on it.
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          2  That's what a local law should be.  Not this garbage

          3  that we have here.  You've got to attend a class

          4  from New York State.  Where are all these people who

          5  know how to build scaffolds.  I met people who build

          6  scaffolds that don't no how to read and write

          7  English but they know how far apart to put the

          8  poles, they know where the guardrails go, they know

          9  how far apart the bearings on the ledgers.  He won't

         10  even know what a bearing or ledger is.

         11                 I thank the Committee and I certainly

         12  appreciate the opportunity to get this off my chest

         13  because I think for the benefit of the workers in

         14  this City, and it's true, we do have a lot of people

         15  getting hurt and getting killed and the boweries in

         16  New York are people who are not English speaking

         17  people, maybe we ought to educate and teach our

         18  inspectors who got out in the field. Maybe we could

         19  teach them different languages or how to communicate

         20  with people so they can get the message across.

         21  Because it's all in education.  We have to teach our

         22  people how to work safely. Ninety percent of

         23  accident are unsafe acts, not unsafe conditions.

         24  Does anyone ever realize why a suspended scaffold we

         25  have guardrails, midrails, toe bars, in addition to
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          2  that we want a harness and an independent lifeline

          3  because we're not too concerned with the scaffold

          4  collapsing.  Two cables never broke in the history

          5  of suspended scaffolds.  One broke and we have a

          6  safety factor of six on the cable.  But sometimes

          7  the cable does break. We want to keep the people in

          8  the scaffold.

          9                 Thank you, I appreciate it.  Thank

         10  you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you all

         12  very much for coming in to testify today.

         13                 The final panel, should no one else

         14  wish to testify will consist of Mr. Sean Brennan of

         15  the Mason Tenders Training Fund, and Mr. Joel Shufro

         16  from NYCOSH.  And you can begin in any order.

         17                 MR. BRENNAN:  Good morning Chairman

         18  Dilan, my name is Sean Brennan.  I'm the Director of

         19  the Mason Tenders District Council Training Fund.

         20  Our organization serves as the construction skills

         21  and health and safety training provider for both

         22  Building and Construction Laborers' Local 79 and

         23  Asbestos, Lead and Hazardous Waste Laborer's Local

         24  78.  These locals represent men and women through

         25  the five boroughs as building construction laborers,
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          2  mason tenders, plasterer's helpers, demolition

          3  workers and asbestos and hazardous waste abatement

          4  workers.

          5                 As the Committee well aware working

          6  in the construction industry is an inherently

          7  dangerous endeavor even under the safest of

          8  circumstances accidents can happen.  Today in far

          9  too many instances the words safety first have been

         10  reduced to a mere slogan rather than a routinely

         11  practiced job site philosophy.  Sadly, unscrupulous

         12  contractors routine and deliberately circumvent and

         13  ignore federal, State and City safety regulations

         14  and training requirements.  In doing so, they

         15  virtually ensure the heightened risk to the lives

         16  and limbs of their workers. Because of the

         17  irresponsibility of these contractors, hard working

         18  men and women are leaving for work every morning

         19  knowing that they may not return home that evening.

         20                 Why you might ask would anyone go to

         21  work under these conditions?  The answer is simple,

         22  without that job, their families do not eat.

         23                 In this industry no piece of

         24  equipment poses a greater danger to workers than a

         25  two- point suspended scaffold. The failure or loss

                                                            122

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  of integrity of any component in the support system

          3  or supporting building structure can have

          4  catastrophic consequences.

          5                 Last year in response to a serious of

          6  suspended scaffold related worker injuries and

          7  fatalities, the Mayor's Office formed the Scaffold

          8  Workers Safety Task Force.  I was honored to be

          9  asked to serve as one of its members.

         10                 From the outset, the stated goal of

         11  the Task Force was to save lives.  After careful

         12  examination of the recommended changes under

         13  consideration, it's my opinion while well

         14  intentioned they fall woefully short of that stated

         15  goal.  Even if these changes represent only an

         16  opening salvo and a far broader and more

         17  comprehensive overhaul of the regulations, the

         18  suggested changes, if not modified could potentially

         19  result in the unintended consequence of increased

         20  fatalities.

         21                 Currently Section 1, Subdivision B of

         22  section 27 1045 states that the user of the

         23  suspended scaffold is required to perform the daily

         24  inspection of the equipment that he or she will be

         25  working on.  It's been assumed that the user by
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          2  virtue of their having completed the required

          3  training as qualified to properly inspect the

          4  components.  The recommended change to the standard

          5  appropriately places responsibility for the

          6  inspection on the more highly trained and ultimately

          7  responsible rigger.  It becomes unacceptable,

          8  however, with the recommendation further stating in

          9  subparagraphs i and double ii that the foreman, and

         10  triple iii that the superintendent of construction

         11  is permitted to perform the daily inspection.

         12  Nowhere in existing regulation or in these proposed

         13  changes can I find any requirement for a foreman who

         14  is neither a rigger nor a use or a superintendent of

         15  construction who is neither a rigger nor acting as a

         16  user to have any suspended scaffold training

         17  whatsoever.

         18                 As a result workers lives may be

         19  placed in the hands of supervisors who simple are

         20  not competent to inspect these dangerous devices.

         21  It's essential that the requirement for all foreman

         22  and superintendents of construction who perform

         23  inspections to complete the requisite training be

         24  included.  Additionally articulation of suspended

         25  scaffolds specific standard, similar to OSHA's
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          2  competent person standard should also be considered.

          3  Furthermore, there exists no standard for the

          4  inspection procedure. Under existing regulation as

          5  well as these proposed changes a barely cursory

          6  inspection is satisfactory.  In fact only a

          7  signature is required.  It's my recommendation since

          8  the user may no longer be performing the inspection

          9  and that their lives are ultimately at risk that

         10  language be added that the inspections be performed

         11  to the satisfaction of the user.  In addition, while

         12  I agree that the inspector should sign off that an

         13  inspection was performed, there is no provision for

         14  ensigning ultimate responsibility to a foreman or

         15  superintendent of construction in the event of an

         16  accident. Current law places that responsibility

         17  only on the rigger.  In regard to the recommended

         18  increases and fines I offer my qualified support.

         19  These penalties represent the real teeth in the

         20  proposed changes.  My sincere hope is that they will

         21  serve to dissuade violators but my experience tells

         22  me that they too may fall somewhat short.

         23                 In conclusion, with some refinement I

         24  believe these changes represent a good first step.

         25  There is however, far more that needs to be done in
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          2  order for us as a Task Force, and industry and a

          3  City to truly reach the stated goal of saving lives.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

          6                 MR. SHUFRO:  My name is Joel Shufro,

          7  I'm the Executive Director of the New York Committee

          8  for Occupational Safety and Health, a coalition of

          9  about 200 local unions in the metropolitan area.

         10  About three hundred individuals who are concerned

         11  with workplace safety and health.  I'm also here

         12  representing Edward Ott, Executive Director of the

         13  New York City Central Labor Council who was unable

         14  to attend today because of conflicting prior

         15  appointments.

         16                 We want to commend the Mayor and the

         17  Council for the prompt and decisive initiatives

         18  dealing with an epidemic of fatalities which we have

         19  experienced in this City and we are here to support

         20  the enactment of the current proposed legislation

         21  that is in front of you.  We believe these bills,

         22  when enacted and rigorously enforced will result in

         23  a safer working environment for scaffold workers and

         24  the public.

         25                 However, we believe that the
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          2  enactment of this legislation is only the first

          3  step.  The key is stopping the unnecessary

          4  fatalities we have witnessed over the last years to

          5  dramatically expand the Department of Buildings

          6  Enforcement Capability, and that essentially means

          7  more inspectors on the street and more inspections.

          8  Given the large number of construction sites

          9  throughout the five boroughs there must be a strong

         10  visible presence of inspectors in each borough.  The

         11  Mayor in his press conference this morning in the

         12  testimony of the Commissioner talked about the

         13  increased number of inspectors and engineers being

         14  hired.  This morning the Commissioner said that 12

         15  would be hired which included engineers and a

         16  supervisor and inspectors, it's not clear how that

         17  comports exactly with the number that the Mayor gave

         18  which was 10 new inspectors in the unit. We believe

         19  this is a step in the right direction but we believe

         20  that more inspectors are necessary to deal with the

         21  hundreds of scaffolds which are hung in the five

         22  boroughs every day.

         23                 The law creates new reporting

         24  requirements of riggers who hang scaffolds.  It's

         25  impossible, according to the Department as they
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          2  testified this morning to determine how many

          3  notifications will be filed and therefore impossible

          4  to determine what percentage of the scaffolding

          5  projects the new inspectors will be able to inspect.

          6    The Council must require the Department to review

          7  its staffing levels to determine whether they are

          8  sufficient and ask the Department to report back

          9  regularly concerning the number of filings it has

         10  received and the number of inspections it has

         11  conducted.  Among other indicators of enforcement

         12  activity to determine whether its staffing level is

         13  sufficient to enforce the law.

         14                 We believe that the fines are

         15  woefully too low that are being proposed.  While we

         16  agree that issuing a stop work order may be an

         17  effective means of providing a disincentive to

         18  contractors, we think that the proposed fines are so

         19  low that many riggers can absorb them as a cost of

         20  doing business.  The proposed penalties may hurt

         21  smaller companies but there are larger companies for

         22  whom the fines would just be the cost of doing

         23  business.  Given that fines will be eroded by

         24  inflation it would be important to start with much

         25  higher fines.
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          2                 Furthermore, we urge that the Council

          3  include criminal penalties for riggers and building

          4  owners who ignore regulations.  If there was a case

          5  for criminal prosecution, this is it and the failure

          6  of the legislation to provide for criminal penalties

          7  is inexcusable.  This is a business in which there

          8  is no margin for error.  An employer who cuts

          9  corners is threatening the lives of those who are

         10  suspended in mid- air hanging on the side of a

         11  building.  Failure of riggers and building owners to

         12  adhere to the regulations tantamount to assault with

         13  intent to kill.  Surely at a minimum criminal

         14  penalties should be used in cases where workers are

         15  killed as a result of an employer flagrant violation

         16  of regulations.  It may be that the City needs State

         17  legislation to criminalize the violations of the

         18  code, but it should seek that authority.

         19                 We also urge, and did urge as part of

         20  the Task Force, earlier process, that the Department

         21  require a sign off by the rigger, building owner,

         22  licensed architect or licensed engineer but the

         23  parapet that has been inspected prior to the

         24  beginning of a job and is structurally sound and

         25  sufficient to support the scaffold and personnel
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          2  working on it.  We understand that the data for the

          3  last several years does not indicate that this has

          4  been an issue in recent fatalities but it has been

          5  in the past.  According to the union representing

          6  window cleaners in the City, there have been times

          7  in the past when workers have been killed because a

          8  parapet has given way.  The Council should err on

          9  the side of safety and demand that before a worker

         10  is asked to hang off the side of a building, a

         11  competent person certifies that the parapet will

         12  support the scaffold and we would urge you to amend

         13  the law to include such a requirement.  We have been

         14  told by the Department that this is over-

         15  regulation, that's their words.  We are sure that

         16  workers who work on suspended scaffolds their

         17  spouses and children would not consider such a

         18  requirement over- regulation.

         19                 Finally we urge the Council to create

         20  an ongoing Scaffold Safety Task Force which would

         21  meet quarterly to determine whether the program

         22  changes and staffing levels are sufficient to reduce

         23  the hazard to New York Cities Workforce and to

         24  consider additional changes should they prove

         25  necessary.  The report calls for the Task Force to
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          2  exist for one more year and then there's no

          3  provision for its ongoing meetings.  To such an end,

          4  the Department should be required to produce an

          5  annual report or regular report which is issued to

          6  the public detailing its enforcement efforts, the

          7  number of permits, and notifications filed, staffing

          8  levels, numbers of inspections by borough, citations

          9  issued, fines levied and collected.

         10                 Thank you for your consideration.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  I would like to

         12  say thank you both for coming in and testifying with

         13  both of your testimonies. They had some very well

         14  thought- out items that are not in the bill. I see

         15  that the Department of Buildings does have some

         16  representatives still here that were listening to

         17  your testimony. I would only think they would take

         18  it back to their agency.  I'm sure these have been

         19  discussed but they were here to hear it.  And again,

         20  I would like to thank you for both coming in to

         21  testify.  At this time we have no one else, or if

         22  anyone else wants to testify, maybe just when the

         23  Sergeant comes back in just fill out a form and then

         24  you could be next to testify.

         25                 Andrew Horton?
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          2                 MR. HORTON:  Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  From 32 BJ --

          4                 MR. HORTON:  BJSEIU Window Cleaning

          5  Union --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Window Cleaning

          7  Union.

          8                 MR. HORTON:  -- I'm the Safety

          9  Training Coordinator there.  I'm here today

         10  representing our Local.  I want to thank the

         11  Committee.  Unfortunately I do not have a written

         12  report.  I just got into town about three hours ago

         13  so I apologize.

         14                 I do commend the Committee for all

         15  their hard work, the Task Force had some great

         16  ideas, again, I was speaking with Joel a couple of

         17  days ago.  My one concern is definitely the parapet

         18  wall.  Parapet walls are not being inspected.  They

         19  talked about C- hooks and clamps.  Our biggest

         20  problem in New York City is the decay of parapet

         21  walls and it goes back to a professional engineer

         22  must give a report stating that the parapet wall is

         23  structurally sound before window cleaners and/or any

         24  other organization is going to hang a C- hook or S-

         25  hook.  We also do believe that the fines have come a
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          2  long way but we still believe that they are too low.

          3    We also want to have retraining for the worker at

          4  least once a year and also have at least once every

          5  two years all licensed riggers fill out a form

          6  stating the jobs they have done and also to be

          7  brought up on the rules and regulations. Again, I've

          8  been working scaffolds for over 25 years, I also

          9  teach rules and regulations, I also teach the Safety

         10  Scaffold Class for the City of New York, I also am

         11  an outreach OSHA trainer.  So I've been around for a

         12  long time.  I've seen a lot of accidents.  We have

         13  come a long way, but I've still believe we have a

         14  long way to go and a Task Force should stay on this

         15  here not just for a year, but continuously.

         16                 I thank you for your time.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you for

         18  your testimony.

         19                 Before I close the hearing I want to

         20  acknowledge, and we mentioned earlier for the record

         21  that you were Chairing your Hearing on the Health

         22  Committee, but we've been joined by the Majority

         23  Leader of the Body Joel Rivera and I want to add

         24  that we've received a statement for the record from

         25  the Mason Tenders District Council from Mike
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          2  McGuire.  All legislative items on today's agenda

          3  will be laid aside and that will conclude today's

          4  hearing.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 1:09 p.m.)
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